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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBERERNBEXBEER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SRERREESE

Note:

(1)  Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the
sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers,
rental income from operating leases and management and
administrative service fee income charged to tenants, net of
value added tax or other sales tax and sales discounts.
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX

Same store sales growth

RIS S O

Sales per ticket @
RH5HEMF?

Area efficiency (per m?) @ 3

(5 F oK)

Notes:

(M

Same store sales growth represents change in the total gross
revenue for department stores and supermarkets having
operations throughout the comparable period.

Sales per ticket represents gross revenue per total number of
transactions of department stores.

Area efficiency represents gross revenue per department
store annual average operating area.
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Five Years Summary Financial Information (2010 - 2014)

IFNBERRE(ZZE—SEFE-_FT-—NF)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 B Z = F—F+ A =+—HILF/EF
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LT £31)

RESULTS
Turnover HEH
- Continuing operations —FREEER
- Discontinued operations ~ —# |FE & ¥
Profit attributable PR R & 15 55
to equity shareholders
— Continuing operations —HREEED
- Discontinued operations ~ —#R |4 & ¥ 7%

i

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERER

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
DEDUCT:
CURRENJ[ LIABILITIES

NET CURRENT
LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
DEDUCT:

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

SERBRE
ROAE

mEBE

mB A EFE

BEERRSARE

3
ERDE

BEFH

2014
HK$°000
—E-mE
TR

1,722,418

1,722,418

120,149

120,149

2014
HK$°000
—EF-QmF
TER
8,398,122
1,876,152

3,089,997

(1,213,845)

7,184,277

1,622,343

5,561,934
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLFE

2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=% ZF—% ZF—% ZT-%F%
T FET FET FET
1,871,577 1,740,483 1,298,932 719,709
1,871,577 1,740,483 1,298,932 719,709
443,641 422,802 215,150 74,479
443,641 422,802 215,150 74,479
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—-H
2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-=F —T-——-F —ET——F —IET-ITF
FHEL FAEL FATL FAEIT
6,954,889 6,349,007 4,041,409 3,190,826
2,014,172 2,124,613 1,083,542 315,581
2,029,683 2,410,872 1,910,105 1,412,705
(15,511) (286,259) (826,563)  (1,097,124)
6,939,378 6,062,748 3,214,846 2,093,702
1,866,341 1,615,967 1,756,600 1,688,233
5,073,037 4,446,781 1,458,246 405,469




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014 (“the year").

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading operator of middle to high end
shopping malls, department stores and supermarkets in
northwest China. As at 31 December 2014, the Group owns
eight department stores and seven supermarkets in Shaanxi
province and Urumgi. It also owns several prime commercial
properties strategically located within premium central
business districts. The Group’s store GFA covers approximately
300,000 square meters (3,200,000 square feet), of which
approximately 160,000 square meters (1,700,000 square feet)
are self-owned properties.

In 2014, more negative impacts on the development of offline
retail enterprises appeared. On the one hand, the impacts due
to the strict control on the consumption of utility services,
the continuing anti-corruption actions persisted and further
intensified industry competition, while the onslaught brought
by the rapid development of internet and mobile internet
technology have not been weakened. On the other hand, with
the ongoing slowdown in macroeconomic growth, overseas
purchasing and travelling abroad were becoming more
popular. With the decline in personal consumption confidence,
the subdued real estate markets and the unstable international
exchange rate of Renminbi (“RMB"), further hindered the
sales growth of offline retail enterprises. In 2014, the revenue
of the nation’s top 100 large retail enterprises grew by only
0.4% year-on-year, which was considerably less than that of
last year and appeared to be a slowdown of growth for the
third consecutive year since 2012. The number of closed stores
of nation’s major retail enterprises (e.g. department stores,
supermarkets) in 2014 appeared to be the highest number
yet recorded for the past years. Among the northwestern
region, where the Group's business located, the revenue of
the department stores appeared to be a “lower growth rate,
higher drop rate”. The business area of the department stores
was thereby reduced. There was an increase in store closing.
When several retail enterprises closed their stores as the stop-
loss strategies, they explored other sales channel among the
third and fourth-tier cities. Due to the aforementioned factors,
the Group’s turnover and operating profit decreased by 8%
and 45% year-on-year respectively, while the same store sales
year-on-year decreased by approximately 15%
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

However, taking into account the wider context of expanding
domestic demand, stronger promotion of consumption and
continuing increase in per capita income, the Group believes
that both opportunities and challenges will be offered in the
PRC's retail market. During the first half of this year, total retail
sales of consumer goods in the Shaanxi province year-on-year
increased by 12.9% which showed that the public spending
power among the northwestern region remained strong.

During the year, the Group purchased a shopping mall which
was under construction and located in the central business
district of Xi‘an. The floor area of the shopping mall was
approximately 69,061 square meters with 457 parking spaces.
The acquisition allowed the Group to establish its department
stores in such important commercial property project in Xi'an,
enhancing the market share and market influence of Century
Ginwa.

The implementation of 020 platform indicated the leading
omni-channel management of Century Ginwa, and became
the enterprise’s core competencies under the new normality.
Significant results were achieved in the aspect of customer
loyalty enhancement. By consolidating companies’ various
types of stores and brand resources beyond the geographical
limitation, the sales market has expanded to the second-tier
and third-tier province-level markets. With the implementation
of 24-hour operation, a new mode of marketing, which was
integrated with online and offline marketing, service and
selling, was initially established in 2014. It was making certain
impacts on companies operating results. However, it requires
a deep exploration to discover the functionality, integrity of
business models and potential effects behind such new mode
of marketing, and requires further accumulation of experience
and inputs on the issues.

During the year, the Group has entirely prioritized the
membership management of Century Ginwa with a systematic
approach. The Group has proposed a complete optimization
of membership policies on the basis of data analysis and in-
depth research, which met the evolving needs under the new
normality. Such optimization of membership policies has been
implemented, and thus drastically enhanced the flow system.
Based on the internal and external information collection and
large-scale questionnaires, the service philosophy of Century
Ginwa has been completed, laying the ground for the future
promotion and applications.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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The Group has also focused on improving its general
management. In 2014, 27 departments of the companies
reported 85 clauses of management results in respect of
strategic management, merger and acquisition integration,
organizational management, brand management, store
operation, financial management, human resources
management. 37 clauses of management system and
workflow were also proposed. Such results were beyond our
expectation.

CORPORATE AWARDS

In 2014, the Group received a number of awards in respect
of business operation including “Service Brand Enterprise in
Xi‘an” issued by Xi'an Municipal People’s Government and
“Customer Satisfaction Enterprise for the National Commercial
Services” issued by China General Chamber of Commerce.

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, as the reforms expedited and the economic
structural adjustment advanced, steady national economy’s
momentum can be seen. The “To increase guarantees and
to expand domestic demand” policy was announced on the
Third Plenary Session of the 18th Central Committee, pursuant
to which, the industries serving the consumption sector and
livelihood sector will be supported by the government. Hence,
it will be also beneficial to retail industry in the long run. The
rapid urbanization will lead to the change of consumption
ratios and structure. Hence, it will further stimulate the
potential demand under consumption upgrade. In the coming
period, the age group with strong consuming power will be
widening continuously, while the demographic dividend will
be erased. These will lead to the reduction of saving rates and
economic transition towards a consumption driven growth.
The Company remains cautiously optimistic about the PRC's
future economic development and domestic consumption
growth.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

Driven by the development of internet and new technologies,
the scope of products has expanded among various retail
industries, involving the interlinked areas with other industries.
While the internet companies involve in the retail industry,
the only difficulty facing by the retailers being on local
competition is fundamentally changed. Hence, the omni-
channel competition tends to be the inevitable trends of
development. Given the adjustment of government’s policies,
change of people’s way of life and the rise of post-80s and
post-90s consumer groups, transformation of the Group's
target customers and consumption behavior have been seen.

Taking into account the in-depth analysis for the current
situation and the objective assessment of the future trends,
coupled with the Group’s vision rooted in its retail business,
the Group will note the key factors affecting retail industry
and accelerate the formation of the customer-oriented
business model and capability. Through the data mining and
analyzing system, utilizing of management techniques and
meticulous analysis on consumers’ behaviors, the Group
has enhanced its management level on targeted marketing.
By leveraging the continuing innovation on marketing
techniques, enhancement of scientific analysis, enforcing of
control measures and increase of efficiency which led from
inputs to outputs, the product and operation management
capabilities and marketing capabilities will be strengthened.
By focusing more on guiding the consumption aspect, the
consumption potential will be tapped, resulting in a higher
output. Equipped with the SAP-based enterprise resource
planning system and unified management platform, the Group
gradually established its online/offline integrated capabilities
via the implementation of 020 strategic project. It provides
the customers a more convenient shopping experience. By
understanding and determining the customers’ real needs, the
Group will continuously provide the customers great shopping
experiences. Meanwhile, the Group will expand its sales area,
customer base and products coverage, so as to enhance its
business structure and explore business source for its future
growth.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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In respect of the Group’s current businesses, the Group
will combine and optimize the current businesses based
on its successful practices and accumulated experience on
the Group’s trendy department stores and supermarkets
businesses. The Group will also expand its sales network
coverage among the second-tier cities in Shaanxi province,
aiming to achieve virtuous growth of scales. In the aspect of
broadening business diversity and increasing the source of
profit, the Group will further develop its business as brand
agents by introducing well-known domestic and foreign brands
to the market in the northwestern region, providing consumers
more excellent choices and providing management service for
franchisers. By delivering products to consumers directly via a
compressed sales channel, the profit distribution model will be
changed.

Besides, the Group will insist its principle of prudent financial
management and strive to control costs. With a view to
the effective implementation of optimization measures, the
Group will further enlarge its management improvement and
effectiveness of capacity building, which shall be to a great
extent reflected in the Group’s 2015 operation results. The
Group is confident in maintaining its leading position in the
marketplace among the industry, generating better returns for
our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business associates for their continued strong
support.

Wu Yijian
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Notwithstanding a gradual improvement in global economic
growth, the economic environment in China remained
complicated. Due to further intensified industry competition
and the decline in personal consumption confidence, the
performance of the Group was inevitably affected by the
macroeconomic environment during the year.

(i) Gross revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 decreased to HK$5,035.5 million as
compared to HK$5,898.0 million for the same period
last year, representing a drop of 15%, due to the
decrease in concession sales.

(i) In the current year, same store sales dropped by 15%.

(iii) ~ Area efficiency (gross revenue per department
store annual average operating area) for 2014 was
HK$39,500 per square meter which was 16% lower
than that of last year. The decrease was mainly due to
decrease in gross revenue of department stores.

(iv)  Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 decreased to HK$1,722.4 million as compared
to HK$1,871.6 million for the same period last
year, representing a drop of 8%, due to decrease in
concession sales.

(v) Rental income from operating leases and management
and administrative service fee income of the Group
during the year reached HK$214.5 million, which
represented a slight increase from HK$213.8 million of
last year.

(vi)  Impairment losses on fixed assets of the Group during
the year were attributed to impairment on leasehold
improvements of HK$46.5 million (2013: HK$nil) as
disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's profit from operations for 2014 was
HK$226.0 million, decreased by 45% from HK$410.9
million for 2013. The operating profit margin (profit
from operations over gross revenue) decreased from
7.0% to 4.5%. The decrease was mainly due to
impairment losses on fixed assets of HK$46.5 million
during the year (2013: HK$nil).

Due to the increase in market value of the Saigo
Property, the Group recorded a pre-tax gain of
HK$166.6 million for appreciation in the value of the
investment property (2013: HK$226.8 million).

Net finance costs in 2014 were HK$146.2 million (2013:
HK$58.9 million). The increase in net finance costs was
because interest expenses on bank loans increased due
to increase in bank loan balances. Finance income on
loan receivable from a related party dropped as the loan
receivable was fully settled during the year.

Changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments
resulted in a gain of HK$2.8 million (2013: HK$8.8
million). The change was attributable to the issuance
of warrants to a financial institution in second half of
2013.

The Group's effective income tax rate in 2014 was
48.7% (2013: 19.6%) which was higher than the
regular PRC income tax rate of 25%. It is mainly due
to under-provision of current taxation of the Group
in respect of prior years accounted for in year 2014
amounting to HK$2,378,000 (2013: over-provision of
HK$14,498,000). In addition, tax effect of unused tax
losses not recognised increased from HK$10,584,000
in 2013 to HK$33,819,000 in 2014, and tax effect
of write-down of deferred tax assets increased from
HK$12,456,000 in 2013 to HK$27,987,000 in 2014.

The Group’s profit for the year and profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company were HK$142.2 million
(2013: HK$474.0 million) and HK$120.1 million (2013:
HK$443.6 million) respectively.

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)
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(xiii)  Basic and diluted earnings per share for 2014 were
HK$0.05 (2013: HK$0.19) and HK$0.05 (2013:
HK$0.18), respectively.

(xiv) The Group’s net cash used in operations for 2014
was HK$30.3 million (2013: net cash generated from
operations HK$197.6 million). The change was due to
the increase in trade and other receivable during the
year.

(xv) Trade and other receivables at the end of 2014 was
HK$805.5 million (2013: HK$641.1 million) which
mainly included the amount in other receivables
whom provides services in managing customer loyalty
programme and the sale and usage of customers’
prepaid cards within the Group’s department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets, which has been
settled subsequent to 31 December 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s consolidated net asset
value was HK$5,561.9 million (2013: HK$5,073.0 million).
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had cash at bank and
on hand and short-term investments amounting to HK$357.7
million and HK$586.7 million (2013: HK$266.2 million and
HK$nil) respectively. The increase was mainly due to receipts
from loans receivable from a related party during the year. The
current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2014 was 0.61
(2013: 0.99). The gearing ratio, being the bank loans plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash at bank and on hand
and short-term investments divided by the total equity (which
comprised all components of equity, less unaccrued proposed
dividends), as at 31 December 2014, was 0.26 (2013: 0.31).

The capital raising activities during the year are disclosed in
note 29 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to 2014, the PRC retail industry will continue
to face challenges and be subject to internal and external
factors including macroeconomic fluctuation, government
policy guidance, rapid growth of other retail channels such as
e-commerce and rising costs.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimize its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximize the returns to its
shareholders.

Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital, a leading
private-equity firm in China sponsored by Legend Holdings,
in late 2010 to acquire the Company’s convertible bonds
amounting to HK$1,330.5 million, the cooperation between
Hony Capital and the Group has become closer. In December
2012, Hony Capital had not only made additional capital
contribution to the Group of US$60 million (approximately
HK$470 million) for business expansion and as working capital,
but also used all of its existing convertible bonds to subscribe
for non-redeemable convertible preferred shares which
reduced the debt burden of the Group, substantially increased
shareholders’ capital and strengthened the financial position.
As at the date of this report, Hony Capital held 28.79% of
the Company’s ordinary share capital in issue and was the
Company’s second largest shareholder.

Hony Capital is an investment fund which is structured as
an exempted limited partnership established in the Cayman
Islands. According to the limited partnership interests of Hony
Capital, Legend Holdings Corporation is the most important
investor of Hony Capital, with a holding of approximately
14.3% of the value of the fund. Apart from Legend Holdings
Corporation, Hony Capital has 77 other investors with interests
ranging from 0.02% to 7.15% of the value of the fund.
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Establish 020 platform to facilitate information
management

As a traditional business form that once was designed to meet
pure shopping needs of consumers, department stores face
challenges brought by goods homogenization, same marketing
model, regular price competition and rising operating cost in
recent years. On the other hand, the rise of Post-80s and 90s
consumers who have grown in the Internet era and whose
consumption habits and behaviours are substantially different
from that of their parents has hit department stores and
shopping malls in the online shopping era. Facing intense
competition, all retail business forms attempt to expand their
presence into the areas of other forms, and omni-channel
competition has become an irreversible trend.

During the year, the Group formally established its dedicated
Online-to-Offline (020) team in order to facilitate the
integration of its online and offline operations, whereby its
online sales will boost its offline sales which will enable the
Group to achieve omni-channel marketing and comprehensive
customer services. In the long term, the Group expects to
analyze its customers’ consumption behaviours through data
mining, in order to promote accurate marketing and guide
consumption. The 020 platform has been put into operation
in the second half year in 2014. As it is expected to take
approximately half a year to establish related IT system and
business operation capability, it has not made considerable
contribution to the Group’s revenue during the year.

In addition to placing great efforts in marketing strategy, the
implementation of information management also marks an
important step for the Group to improve its management.
The Group has been running SAP ERP, the world’s leading
enterprise resources and information management system,
since August 2013, with the aim of optimizing management
process, improving operational efficiency, and achieving
synergies across channels and interaction across business
forms. SAP ERP has covered the majority of the Group's
department stores by the end of the year.

Optimize business structure and expand into second-
and third-tier cities

While making innovations in marketing, the Group also
strengthened its core competitiveness of retail commerce by
providing outstanding shopping experiences and services,
improving tenant mix and gradually expanding the coverage of
its sale region, customer base and brand resources.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Most of the Group’s department stores are mixes of
department stores and shopping malls. Saigo Store joined
the department store as an anchor store, providing food and
beverage, recreational and entertainment elements to reinforce
its ability to attract customers and promoting experience-based
consumption to withstand online shopping while meeting
consumers’ purchasing demand.

The Group aims to finish adjusting the positioning and brand
mix of its boutique department stores in the coming year to
reinforce its operational strengths. During the adjustment
period, its results of operation will be negatively affected to
a certain extent. The results of adjustment are expected to
start to show in year 2015. The Group will expand its mid-end
department store and supermarket business at the same time
into second and third-tier cities in northwest China. In respect
of supermarkets, it will give high priority to building its chain
operation and management system, optimizing its supply chain
system this year. It may expand its scale in Xi‘an and second-
tier cities in Shaanxi Province by year 2015. In the future, the
Group will continue to identify potential acquisition targets
and high-quality commercial properties to achieve benign
growth.

Merger & Acquisition

On 4 December 2014, Century Ginwa Company Limited
("Ginwa Bell Tower”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the agreement with Shanghai
Huade Investment Company Limited (“Shanghai Huade”)
pursuant to which Shanghai Huade agreed to procure Xi'an
Yigao Property Development Company Limited (the “Project
Company”) to develop the Property as commercial part of
project known as “Xi‘an Centre” in Xi'an Hi-tech Industries
Development Zone of Xi'an, the PRC, comprising the
commercial part of a gross floor area of approximately 69,061
square meters and 457 car parking spaces (the “Property”) in
accordance with the requirements of Ginwa Bell Tower, and
Ginwa Bell Tower agreed that upon the completion of the
development of the Property, it will purchase the Property for
an aggregate consideration of RMB1,651,112,750 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,080,402,065). In this regard, the
Company had obtained the approval from the shareholders at
the special general meeting on 6 February 2015.

The Group continues to explore merger and acquisition
opportunities and quality commercial properties across
northwest China to further increase its market share.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 32 to
the financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group’s operation of department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets earned revenue and incurred
costs in Renminbi. Renminbi was relatively stable although
there was an appreciation pressure during the year. The
Directors considered that the Group’s exposure to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rate was minimal, and accordingly, the
Group did not employ any financial instruments for hedging
purpose.

SEASONAL OR CYCLICAL FACTORS

During the year, the Group’s business operations were not
significantly affected by any seasonal and cyclical factors.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the number of the Group’s staff was
approximately 10,200 (2013: approximately 10,800), including
directly employed approximately 2,400 (2013: approximately
2,600) full time employees, and the remaining were concession
sales staff managed on behalf of the suppliers. Most of the
employees are employed in Mainland China. The directly
employed employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary
increments are assessed based on both individual’s and the
Group’'s performance, professional and working experience
and by reference to prevailing market practice and standards.
Apart from the general remuneration package, the Group
also granted share options and discretionary bonus to the
eligible staff based on their performance and contribution to
the Group. The Group regards quality staff as one of the key
factors to corporate success.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian

Mr. Wu Yijian (“Mr. Wu"), aged 54, was appointed as
Chairman of the Company on 7 January 2011 and re-
designated to an Executive Director of the Company on 19
February 2013. Mr. Wu currently holds the directorship of
certain subsidiaries of the Company, and he was the executive
director from January 2001 to May 2008, the chairman from
May 2003 to May 2008 and the non-executive director of the
Company from January 2011 to 18 February 2013 respectively.

Mr. Wu graduated in Huazhong Normal University with
a Master degree in Economic Management (Political
Economy). He was granted the national titles of “Ten Most
Outstanding Youth of China” in 1996, “Contribution
Award of International Excellent Entrepreneur” in 1997,
“Chinese Excellent Youth Entrepreneur” in 2002 and
“National Outstanding Builders of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics” in 2004. Mr. Wu is chairman of Ginwa
Enterprise (Group) Inc. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) and the chairman of the board and the
president of Ginwa Investments Holding Group Ltd. (“Ginwa
Investments”). He is also the vice-chairman of the China Civil
Chamber of Commerce, chairman of the Chairmen Board
of China Federation of Industrial Economics, vice-president
of the China Association of Small and Medium Enterprises,
vice-chairman of the China Red Ribbon Foundation, standing
committee member of Shaanxi Province People’s Congress,
expert committee member of The People’s Government of
Shaanxi Province Consult Committee, president of Shaanxi
Business Promotion Association, vice-president of Shaanxi
General Chamber of Commerce, honorable president of
Shaanxi Chamber of Commerce of Shanxi Merchant, honorable
president of Hong Kong Xi'an Trade Association Limited
and vice-president of Shaanxi Pharmaceutical Profession
Association.

Mr. Wu is also the sole director of Maritime Century Limited
("MCL"), the substantial shareholder of the Company. MCL
is wholly and beneficially owned by Ginwa Investments.
Ginwa Investments is held as to 92% beneficially by Mr.
Wu. Therefore, Mr. Wu thru MCL was beneficially interested
in 336,166,156 ordinary shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of SFO.

Biographies of Directors
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Mr. Qiu Zhongwei

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 46, was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 3 December 2010.
He was appointed as a Vice Chairman of the Company on 7
January 2011 and a member of the remuneration committee.
He currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Qiu joined Hony Capital in 2005. Hony Capital thru
Glory Keen Holdings Limited was beneficially interested in
1,953,668,427 ordinary shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of SFO. He oversees Hony Capital’s overall
investment activities and direct investments in culture and
media, equipment machinery, consumer goods and retail, and
construction materials sectors. He has extensive experience in
direct investments, project planning, business development
and retail business. He acted as vice president of Yintai
Investment Limited, where he led mergers and acquisitions in
the PRC commercial retail sector and successfully restructured
the commercial retail business of Yintai, making it become one
of the largest private retail group in the PRC. Mr. Qiu holds
a joint Master of Business Administration degree from The
Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University
and. The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
He received his bachelor degree in engineering from Xi‘an
Jiaotong University. He is a non-executive director of Zoomlion
Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code:
(RIS

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (“Mr. Choon”), aged 47, was
appointed as the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 8 March 2010. He holds the directorship
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Choon has over
20 years of experience in finance, mergers & acquisitions,
and corporate restructuring and held management positions
in various listed companies. Mr. Choon had worked for one
of the Big Four international accountancy firms and another
prestigious CPA firm and had also been engaged in various
mergers and acquisitions exercises. Mr. Choon was the general
manager of Finance Department of Guangnan Holdings
Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited with Stock Code: 1203) during its restructuring
exercise from 1999 to 2001. Mr. Choon also has experience in
department store business in the PRC and held the position of
deputy chief operating officer from 2003 to 2007 of Junefield
Department Store Holdings Limited (a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code: 758)
and was also the director of the jointly controlled entity Wuhan
Plaza. Mr. Choon was appointed as the Chairman Assistant of
the Company since year 2007.
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Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Qu Jiagi (“Mr. Qu"), aged 55, was re-designated to a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 19 February 2013. Mr.
Qu currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and was an Executive Director from 11 August
2007 to 18 February 2013. He is currently executive vice
president of Ginwa Investments. Mr. Qu worked with several
other large department stores and shopping malls in Xi'an,
China.

Mr. Qu has over 30 years of working experience in department
store business. Mr. Qu received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also received training in High
Level Business Administration from The Open University
of Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Shaanxi Province
Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” in October 2000 and
“China Professional Operational Management Master” in
2005. Mr. Qu is also a representative of the 13th and 14th
Xi'an City People’s Assembly.

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Mr. Sha Yingjie (“Mr. Sha"), aged 57, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2007 and holds
the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Sha is currently the deputy financial controller of Ginwa
Investments. He once worked as the financial controller of the
Supply Station of XiBei Electrical Engineering Company Limited
and the financial controller of Xi‘an Taiwan Hotel.

Mr. Sha has over 20 years of working experience in commerce
and finance. Mr. Sha received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also holds a master degree in
business administration from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He was awarded China career manager in June 2003
and was appointed taxation practice review inspector by
Xi'an Tax Bureau in the PRC since 2014. He obtained a chief
financial officer qualification certificate in respect of business
administration position in 2007. In 2012, he was admitted
as an affiliate member of The Association of International
Accountants.
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Mr. Chen Shuai

Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen”), aged 41, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company on 3 December 2010.
He also was appointed as a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company on 7
January 2011 and the nomination committee of the Company
on 7 March 2012. He currently holds the directorship of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. Hony Capital thru
Glory Keen Holdings Limited was beneficially interested
in 1,953,668,427 ordinary shares of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of SFO. He directs investments
in financial services, culture and media, consumer goods
and retail and construction material sectors. Mr. Chen has
extensive experience in investment management, supplier
management and retail business. Prior to joining Hony Capital
in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked in an investment company, a
PRC retail chain and department store and a PRC domestic
comprehensive supermarket company. Mr. Chen holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The
China Europe International Business School. He received his
bachelor degree in economics from Beijing Forestry University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (“Mr. Chan"”), aged 61, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 24 September 2004. Mr. Chan graduated with
a bachelor degree in Social Science (Economics) from The
University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1978. Mr. Chan
has over 20 years' experience in marketing and business
development. He is currently an executive director of Zhi
Cheng Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code: 8130).
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Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 44, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 25
September 2008. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 10 years of experience
in accounting and finance. At present, he practices public
accounting.

Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of China
Financial Services Holdings Limited (a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code: 605)
which is engaged in the business of provision of financing
services.

Ms. Li Ling

Ms. Li Ling (“Ms. Li"), aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the
audit committee on 7 January 2011. She also was appointed as
a chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company on
16 January 2012 and a member of the nomination committee
of the Company on 7 March 2012. Ms. Li has been working
as the general manager of certain reputable department stores
and shopping complex in China over the past 10 years and
has extensive management experience in department store
and retail business. Ms. Li holds a Master of Science degree
in Biology from Hangzhou University (currently known as
Zhejiang University). She is a consultant of Hangzhou lJiebai
Group Company Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange). She is an independent director of Happigo
Home Shopping Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Growth
Enterprises Market in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, with
Stock Code: 300413).
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2014 are set out in the financial statements on
pages 59 to 68.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for
the five years ended 31 December 2014 and the assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2010, 2011, 2012,
2013 and 2014 are set out on page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29(c) to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution
of the Company passed on 15 February 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”), the Company may grant options to the
eligible person of the Company to subscribe for shares in
the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose shares issued in the exercise of
options for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
selected eligible person for their contribution to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme became effective on 15 February
2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or amended according
to the Share Option Scheme, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date. Eligible person of the Share Option Scheme
includes the followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ili)  a company beneficially owned by any director, employee
or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(iv)  any person or entity whose service to the Group or
business with the Group contributes or is expected to
contribute to the business or operation of the Group as
may be determined by the directors from time to time.

The exercise price of the share options shall be the higher of
(i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (iii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to Scheme
adjustments).

Details of movements in share options of the Company are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 October 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme under which the shares of the Company
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to any member of
management and employee (either full time or part time)
of any member of the Group, Directors (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), any suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers (professional or otherwise), joint venture and service
providers to any member of the Group from time to time (the
“Selected Participants”) pursuant to the terms of the Scheme
Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme. The
Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date
and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 16 October 2024.

The maximum aggregate nominal value of the Awarded Shares
which may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1 per cent. of the issued
Share capital of the Company at the date of such award.

When a Selected Participant has satisfied all vesting conditions
specified by the Board of the Company at the time of making
the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company
forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer
the relevant Awarded Shares to that participant. The Selected
Participant however is not entitled to receive any income
or distribution, such as dividend derived from the unvested
Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

In 2015, the Company has purchased 1,300,000 shares of the

Company through the trustee in the open market on the Stock
Exchange for the purpose of share award scheme.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’'s reserves
(including retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus,
subject to equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to
HK$1,231,279,000 (2013: HK$1,288,000,000) were available
for distribution to the Company’s shareholders. In addition,
the share premium of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$1,343,548,000 (2013: HK$1,343,548,000)
may be distributed in form of fully paid bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr.Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Qu Jiaqi
Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Ms. Li Ling

In accordance with the Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company, Mr.
Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin, Mr. Qu Jiagi and Mr. Sha Yingjie will
retire from the office of directorship by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms.
Li Ling, and considers them to be independent for the year.
The Company considers that each of such Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent from the Group based
on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 19 to 23 of the annual report.

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

EEEANFzER

W BTSRRI EE33AT IR E S RAF
FREANAFENTMEHE ADAEE
IR 1 A 20 ) o L AT i BB 8 R AT AT 32
ZEMEEANTHEEEAES-

EEREEZRHEEN

RAFEARBEARSE B AQF
ZHEEEZWMT:

BITES
R—BEE(FE)
R ESLE (BIEE)
WMEANTE (TTHABH)

FHITES
R B
BREDSE A4

BYFHITES
BEIESRE
B}t

RIEA R B A BNES7(NME B AL A& -
MRELEERDERNEEBBEERES
B BEHAERTEERENERITZR
REFRKE FEEE(E-

ARPEREEBIYIFATES (ARR
REE BREEEENERZL)REBETL
FNBHZFREERE ARBENLKEF
EABBIATL -REEEMEXZMA
[RAR (MBI ESR EmRA ([ EH
MBI E3IBEAE RS ARARA L
AEBIIFMTESTY/AEKERIBILA
.

ARBEFZEEFBHNFMF19E23
EO

EEEMBEANEEIMKE AR LA
SETAR—FARNEE OEERER
SN T T IARR AR 2 BRI B 4T



EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest

paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the following transactions between certain
connected parties (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the
Group have been entered into and/or are ongoing for which
relevant announcements and independent shareholders’
approval, if necessary, had been made and obtained by the
Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1

Connected transactions

On 9 September 2013, Ginwa Bell Tower, Ginwa
Investments and MCL entered into the Extension
Agreement pursuant to which the repayment date of
the amount due from Ginwa Investments to Ginwa
Bell Tower (the “Ginwa Loan"”) together with accrued
interest will be extended from 31 August 2013 by
further eight months to 30 April 2014 (or such other
date as agreed between Ginwa Bell Tower and Ginwa
Investments). Ginwa Investments is required to pay
extension interest at the rate of 10% per annum,
calculated from 9 September 2013 until the date of
actual repayment. Ginwa Investments shall procure
MCL to pay the extension interest on its behalf. Ginwa
Investments shall pay interest on the Ginwa Loan at
the original interest rate (being 5 year lending rate
offered by the People’s Bank of China) for the period
from | September 2013 to 8 September 2013. Ginwa
Investments is owned as to 92% beneficially by Mr.
Wu Yijian, the Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company. MCL is a company wholly and beneficially
owned by Ginwa Investments and also a substantial
shareholder of the Company. As such, Ginwa
Investments and MCL are connected persons of the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules. The extension of
repayment of the Ginwa Loan constituted a connected
transaction.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(1)

Connected transactions (continued)

On 31 October 2013, Best Mineral Resources Limited
("BMRL"), Ginwa Bell Tower and Ginwa Investments
entered into the Partial Repayment Agreement pursuant
to which BMRL agreed to use the redemption amount
of the convertible bonds issued by the Company to
BMRL of approximately HK$75,170,000 to offset part
of the Ginwa Loan. Upon offsetting part of the Ginwa
Loan by the redemption amount, as at 31 October
2013, the aggregate outstanding amount of principal
and accrued interest of the Ginwa Loan amounted
to approximately RMB758,520,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$958,820,000).

On 9 September 2013, Ginwa Investments, MCL
and Xi‘an Xinmao Property Management Company
Limited (“Xi‘an Xinmao”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into the Property Acquisition
Agreement pursuant to which Ginwa Investments
agreed to sell and Xi‘an Xinmao agreed to purchase a
retail property to be constructed by Ginwa Investments
(the “Property”) at a consideration of RMB1.6 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$2.0 billion) subject to
the terms and conditions of the Property Acquisition
Agreement. However, the Company had been informed
by Ginwa Investments that due to changes in the
development requirements by relevant government
authorities and the incidental financial impact, Ginwa
Investments is not and will not be able to obtain the
land use right certificate in respect of the parcel of
land where the Property is situated prior to the Long
Stop Date (a condition precedent to completion under
the Property Acquisition Agreement). Upon further
discussion and negotiation among the parties to
the Property Acquisition Agreement, the Company
considered that there had not been any progress in
respect of the acquisition of the Property by the Long
Stop Date. Therefore, the Company has decided not
to proceed with the Property Acquisition Agreement.
In this regard, the parties to the Property Acquisition
Agreement have entered into the Termination
Agreement on 30 April 2014 to terminate the
acquisition.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(1)

(2)

Connected transactions (continued)

On 30 July 2014, Ginwa Bell Tower, Ginwa Investments
and MCL have entered into the Supplemental Extension
Agreement, pursuant to which the parties thereto
have agreed that (i) Ginwa Investments shall transfer
the Ginwa Enterprise A Shares held by it to Ginwa Bell
Tower as partial repayment of RMB315.6 million of the
Ginwa Loan; (ii) the Ginwa Loan shall be secured by the
Security Package and (iii) the maturity date of the Ginwa
Loan shall be extended to 180 days after obtaining the
independent shareholders’ approval of the Company.

During the period from 1 May 2014 to 24 October
2014, the Group had received approximately
RMB515.37 million from Ginwa Investments as partial
repayment of the Ginwa Loan. After these repayments,
the outstanding amount of the Ginwa Loan was
approximately RMB315.6 million. On 16 December
2014, Ginwa Investments had transferred the Ginwa
Enterprise A Shares held by it to Ginwa Bell Tower as
the repayment of RMB315.6 million. As such, the Ginwa
loan has been fully repaid to the Group.

Continuing connected transactions
On 30 March 2012, the Company's four subsidiaries,
as lessors, entered into tenancy agreements with

Xi‘an Century Ginwa Epin Life Supermarket Company

Limited (“Xi'an Epin”), as tenant, in respect of renting
at Ginwa Bell Tower, Xi‘an Century Ginwa Shopping
Mall Company Limited (“Hi-Tech Store”), Xi'an
Century Ginwa Nandajie Shopping Mall Company
Limited (“Nandajie Store”) and Shaanxi Century Ginwa
Tangrenjie Shopping Mall Company Limited (“Tangrenjie
Store”) for operations of supermarket business for
a period of three years commencing from 1 January
2012, at annual rental of RMB5.6 million (approximately
HK$7.0 million), RMBO0.9 million (approximately HK$1.1
million), RMBO0.2 million (approximately HK$0.2 million)
and RMBO0.2 million (approximately HK$0.2 million)
respectively. Renting to Xi‘an Epin for operation of
supermarket business in the Group’s department stores
can enhance the product mix. Xi‘an Epin terminated
the tenancy agreements with Nandajie Store and
Tangrenjie Store during 2013. During the year ended 31
December 2014, Ginwa Bell Tower and Hi-Tech Store

received rent from Xi‘an Epin amounting to RMB5.6
million (approximately HK$7.0 million) and RMBO0.9
million (approximately HK$1.1 million) respectively. Xi‘an

Epin is wholly-owned by Ginwa Investments, which
is beneficially owned as to 92% by Mr. Wu Yijian, an
Executive Director and Chairman of the Company, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company. The
transactions under the tenancy agreements constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(2)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 6 June 2013, Xi‘an Century Ginwa Brand
Management Limited (“Brand Management”), the
Company’'s wholly-owned subsidiary, as lessee, entered
into a tenancy agreement with Xi‘an Century Ginwa
Qujiang Shopping Centre Company Limited (“Qujiang
Store”), as lessor, regarding the leasing of shopping
mall space for the operation of a beauty salon for the
period commencing from 6 June 2013 and expiring
on 31 December 2015. The annual rental and building
management fee in aggregate is approximately RMBO0.8
million (approximately HK$1.0 million). According to
a supplementary agreement entered into between
Brand Management and Qujiang Store, the period
from the date of commencement of the lease to 31
December 2013 was regarded as rent-free period and
the related building management fee was waived.
Quijiang Store is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ginwa
Investments which is beneficially owned as to 92% by
Mr. Wu Yijian, an Executive Director and Chairman of
the Company. Accordingly, the transaction under the
tenancy agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company.

Brand Management and Qujiang Store terminated the
tenancy agreement in 2014. During the year ended 31
December 2014, Qujiang Store, as lessor, received rental
and building management fee from Brand Management
amounting to RMBO0.5 million (approximately HK$0.6
million).

On 13 February 2015, the Company’s three subsidiaries,
as lessors, entered into tenancy agreements with Xi‘an
Epin, as tenant, in respect of renting at Ginwa Bell
Tower, Hi-Tech Store and Nandajie Store for operations
of supermarket business for a period of three years
commencing from 16 February 2015, at annual rental of
RMB5.6 million (approximately HK$7.0 million), RMBO0.8
million (approximately HK$1.0 million) and RMBO.3
million (approximately HK$0.4 million) respectively.
Renting to Xi‘an Epin for operation of supermarket
business in the Group's department stores can enhance
the product mix. Xi'an Epin is wholly-owned by Ginwa
Investments, which is beneficially owned as to 92%
by Mr. Wu Yijian, an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company. The transactions under the
tenancy agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(2)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Further details of the significant related party
transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business of the Group are provided under note 33 to
the financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed, except
for those described above in the paragraphs headed
“(1) Connected transactions” and “(2) Continuing
connected transactions”, in respect of which the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

All the continuing connected transactions above have
been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company who have confirmed that
for the year ended 31 December 2014 the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favorable to the Group than terms available to (or
from) independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Further, the Company has engaged its external
auditor to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on continuing connected transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their
conclusions in respect of the non-exempted continuing
connected transactions set out above in accordance
with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were required to be entered
into the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or otherwise were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) and/or the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:

(@) Long positions in the shares of the Company

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H AQAAESE
K EBITHA B AR 7 sk B AT A AR B %
(FERBBENESEZA NS K
Bl ([FBHREEEE]) EXVED) 2B -
HEARODREST HEEAHAREES
REAE GBI EIG 2 REMTFE ZER
MzERERER HIREESKEEKD
BEXVERET R ESH M AME A AF) M B
Rz EZRER (BEREESLEE
GROIBBERERGIEIEERE 2 EE K
BAR)R/SHIBRE LA E SR EHET
ABBHITELER ZIIZEST ([1Z2ST
Al ) MBME AR R REBRAT 2 RS NE
BHINWT

(a) EAFRHBHPZRE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Number of ordinary share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of director Nature of interests shares held Company

EARTF

Frise &7 ERTEER

EsnS EaEtE HERH#E RABQNEIL

Mr. Wu Yijian Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 29.98%
R—Bx&E MR EHEB A ER

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin  Personal interests 355,000 0.03%

BFENLE (PN
Mr. Sha Yingjie Personal interests 1,089,500 0.10%

DEANTE (EPN $

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests or short positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code or any interests which are required to be
entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

(b)
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EERFRETHRAEREQFR
7 HEROREZz2EERER

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND (%)
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Long position in the share options of the (b) ZTATEREZEER
Company
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised  Cancelled or as at
Name of price Vesting and 1 January during during lapsed during 31 December
grantee Date of grant  (HK$) exercise period 2014 the year the year the year 2014
R=Z-m%F
RZ2-RE t=A
ke -A-H FREH ==l
REARS BAAH (Br) BERRITRS R 17 6 FREH FRTE *% Ry
Mr. Wu Yijian 20 Oct 2010 1.26 20 Oct 2010 to 19 Oct 2015 4,375,000 = = = 4,375,000
R-BfE Z2-%2F Z2-ZETR-THE
TA=TH ZE-14THATAR
20 Oct 2011 1.96 20 Oct 2011 to 19 Oct 2017 3,750,000 - = - 3,750,000
—E——% ZE——%+A-THZE
TA=+H ZZ—tE+ATNE
30 May 2013 1.76 30 May 2013 to 29 May 2019 1,150,000 - - - 1,150,000
—T-=f ZZ-=fRA=THE
hA=TAH “Z-NERAZTNA
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, 20 Oct 2010 1.26 20 Oct 2010 to 19 Oct 2015 625,000 - - - 625,000
Edwin
DRENEE E-Z% ZE-ZETAZTHE
TAZ+H ZZ-R§TATAR
20 Oct 2011 1.96 20 Oct 2011 to 19 Oct 2017 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
2 Z2——£+A-THE
Jrﬂ 1A “Z—t5TATNR
28 May 2013 1.73 28 May 2013 to 27 May 2019 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
—E-= “T-=FHAZTN\BE
AAZTNA ZE-NERAZTLA
Mr. Qu Jiagi 20 0ct 2010 1.26 20 Oct 2010 to 19 Oct 2015 625,000 - - - 625,000
BREEE _Z-%F ZZ-ZETA-THE
+A=1H ZZ-R§TATAR
20 Oct 2011 1.96 20 Oct 2011 to 19 Oct 2017 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
—Z—-f ZB——4%+A-tHZE
+E=+A “E2—tF+ATNA
28 May 2013 1.73 28 May 2013 to 27 May 2019 4,000,000 - = 4 4,000,000
—E-= ZZ-=FHRAZTN\BE
BERAZTNR “Z-NFRAZTtA
Mr. Sha Yingjie 20 Oct 2011 1.96 20 Oct 2011 to 19 Oct 2017 1,875,000 - - = 1,875,000
PERTE _E——F ZE——%+A-THZE
TAZTH ZZ—t4£TATAR
28 May 2013 1.73 28 May 2013 to 27 May 2019 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
—Z-=F “E-=¥RA-T/N\BRZE
fLAZTNA ZE-NFRAZTLA
Ms. Li Ling 30 May 2013 1.76 30 May 2013 to 29 May 2019 1,150,000 - - - 1,150,000
E Rt —3-=F “2-Z51R=tRZE
RA=TH ZZ-NFERAZTNA
HEESTEHXERERLAFA —Z—HOFFR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

All the interests stated above represents long positions.
Neither long nor short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or
any interests which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange or any interests which are required to
be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2014, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
interests of 5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed
above in respect of the directors or chief executive officer of
the Company.

(@) Long position/short position in the shares of the
Company

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

FERRE

BREESRBEHRMNIETFHEEZRFES
R-ZZE—NFE+_A=1+—H8 RBEFS
FERE&AIE336I6FEZ EERRERL
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(@ ERARBZRRER

Number of

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company

BART

FisE R BRTEER

BEAE BR/HR WK EERNE  RAZENAMM

Maritime Century Limited Long positions Corporate interests 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.98%
K& DA#ER (Hat1)

Ginwa Investments Holding Group ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.98%

Ltd.

SRERERREEERAT RkE REEHZERAER (Hat1)

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 658,893,428 (Note 2) 58.77%
REARERAT 35 DA#ER (Hat2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 58.77%
RkE REEHZERAER (Hat2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 58.77%
KB REEHZERFAER (Hat2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 58.77%
KB REEHZERFAER (Ht2)

Hony Capital Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 58.77%
RkE KRB ZERFAER (Ht2)

Hony Managing Partners Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 58.77%
RkE KRB ZERFAER (Ht2)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 58.77%
BeRE RkE KRB ZERAER (Ht2)

HLESHHXERERLIET —Z—NFFR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) TERR (&)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b) REQXTRRESTETIAEEBETNZH
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as EROZRE ER (ERXERF
defined in Part XV of the SFO) R E R BIEXVER)

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions Nature of interests shares held the Company

BALT

e & BRTEER

RRER RE/ER BENE EEREA REzBHEAL

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 115.48%
RRARERAR kB NElER (Kiit3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 115.48%
RE REEHZERARR (H3t3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 115.48%
RE REEHZER AR (H3t3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 115.48%
RE REEHZER AR (H3t3)

Hony Capital Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 115.48%
R REEHZER AR (H3t3)

Hony Managing Partners Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 115.48%
kB REEHZERARR (H5t3)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 115.48%

BLRRE

295

REBHZERE RS

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

(Hfi3)



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1

MCL held 336,166,156 Shares. Ginwa Investments
holds the entire issued share capital of MCL. Mr.
Wu Yijian (“Mr. Wu") beneficially owns 92% equity
interests in Ginwa Investments. As such, Mr. Wu was
deemed to be interested in 336,166,156 Shares by
virtue of his shareholding in MCL.

The long position of 658,893,428 Shares represents
(i) 322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen Holdings
Limited (“Glory Keen”); and (i) the security interest
held by Glory Keen over the 336,166,156 Shares held
by MCL under share charge. Hony Capital Fund 2008,
L.P. holds the entire issued share capital of Glory Keen.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the sole general
partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.. Hony Capital
Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hony Capital Management Limited, is the sole
general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P.
Hony Managing Partners Limited owns 80% equity
interests in Hony Capital Management Limited. Mr.
Zhao John Huan held 100% of the issued share capital
of Hony Managing Partners Limited. Each of the above-
mentioned parties is therefore deemed to be interested
in the interest held by Glory Keen.
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(1)

HEESEHFERERDE

MCL#F 5336,166,156 & A% 17 °
SR EFEMCLZ 232 1T
AR R —EREA ([RAELE])
BREFAESEREN% -
Ett - REEREAEMCLZ IR
M 4% 48 15 45 5336,166,156 I IX

,T/\ e

R 2 658,893,428/% B 17 &5 (i) 5%
EERERAA ([RE]) A
B322,727,272 B 1n + R i)k
BRI AR {0 R 52 5 B MC LT 5
5 2336,166,156/% % {5 = #H 1
# 2 > Hony Capital Fund 2008,
LPRBREZ 2HE FHTK
7K e Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP,
L.P.&Hony Capital Fund 2008,
LP2ZME—E@BE %A Hony
Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited
#Hony Capital Management
Limitedz 2 E B AR BEA
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP,
LP2ZME—EBE A Hony
Managing Partners Limited# &
80% Hony Capital Management
LimitedZ SR AR 55 - 5 S BR 5B
4 #:H Hony Managing Partners
Limited 100%E Z4TARA o it
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) The long position of 1,294,774,999 underlying Shares
represents the interest in the 1,294,774,999 conversion
shares which may be issued under the convertible
preferred shares held by Glory Keen. The exercise of
the conversion rights attaching to the convertible
preferred shares are subject to the restrictions as stated
in the paragraph headed “Other terms of the Preferred
Shares” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 19 November 2012.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as
at 31 December 2014, had an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2014, director of the Company had the
following interests in business which competed or were likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business:

Name of director Name of company

Nature of business
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Nature of interests

EsnE NCIEE FBMHE EEMEE

Mr. Wu Yijian Ginwa Investments Project investment, entity 92% of the equity
investment, real estate interest in Ginwa
development, property sales, Investments
leasing and agency services,
department store and
supermarket operations
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (continued)

Note:

Although Mr. Wu Yijian has competing interests in Ginwa Investments
by virtue of his common directorship, the Directors consider that such
competition, if any, is neither significant nor material to the Group as
a whole. Furthermore Mr. Wu will fulfill his fiduciary duties in order
to ensure that he will act in the best interest of the Shareholders and
the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of
carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the businesses of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers taken together were less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 29 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no contract concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year.
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MATERIAL LITIGATION

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in
any other litigation or arbitration of material importance and
there is no litigation or claim of material importance known
to the directors to be pending or threatened by or against the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s shares in the market as required under
the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period of the Group are
set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board perpetually reviews its corporate governance
practices and internal control policy and procedures from
time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for certain
deviations. The corporate governance of the Company for the
year is stated as follows:

CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, all the directors (Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive) are subject to retirement at least
once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company's corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG
Code.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent for the year.

CG Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should
also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees to attend.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the
remuneration committee were not able to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2014 due to
other important business engagement. They had delegated
the Chief Executive Officer to chair and be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2014 and the date of this annual report,
the Board is comprised of four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

The followings are the members of the Board:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Qu Jiaqi
Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Ms. Li Ling

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably
qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently. Biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.
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OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to CG
Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly and
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximate intervals. During the year, the Board met regularly
and frequently for the review and approval on the business of
department stores, shopping mall and supermarkets. Details
of Directors’ attendance of the Board and the shareholders’
meetings held for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out as follows:
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All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-Laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.

The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include:

- 'management of the overall business and strategic
development;

—  deciding business plans and investment plans;

— convening general meetings and reporting to the
shareholders; and

—  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by shareholders in general meetings.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

The Directors may have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company to ensure that the
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon reasonable
request, seek independent professional advice under
appropriate circumstance at the Company's expenses.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate,
independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to
the Board meeting and scrutinizing the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision; in
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the
Group's strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to
the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results
and management to ensure that all interests of shareholders
are taken into account, and the interests of the Company and
its shareholders are protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors,
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications or financial management
expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
The Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing one-third of the Board, in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of his duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enroll in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance and
corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refresh their knowledge and
skills during the year for ensuring their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Such professional
development was completed by way of attending briefings,
conference, courses, forum and seminars, teaching, self-
reading and participating in business-related researches which
are relevant to the business or directors’ duties.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance.

Mr. Wu Yijian is the Chairman of the Company. The Chairman'’s
responsibility is to oversee the functioning of the Board and
the strategies and policies of the Group.

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for monitoring the daily operation and management of the
Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Directors (including the
Independent Non-executive Directors) has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date, renewable
automatically by three years on the expiry of such term and
every successive period of three years thereafter, subject to
the relevant provisions under the Company’s amended and
restated Bye-Laws requiring no less than one-third of all the
Directors (i.e. both Executive and Non-executive Directors
are included) to retire from office by rotation at each Annual
General Meeting of the Company, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian and Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin have entered into
a service contract with the Company for a specific term, and
all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) Audit Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee, and (iii) Nomination Committee
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees, which explain their respective roles and the
authorities delegated to them by the Board, are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance
under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms. Li Ling, and one Non-executive
Director, Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter is the
chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review the
financial reporting process of the Group and its internal control
system, oversee the audit process and perform other duties
assigned by the Board and make recommendations for the
Company to improve the quality of financial information to be
disclosed. It also reviews the annual and interim reports of the
Company prior to their approval by the Board.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
and recommended the appointment of the external auditor.
Also, the Audit Committee together with management and
independent auditors have reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the audited results for the year ended 31 December
2014, and the unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2014 prior to their approval by the Board.
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During the year, two meetings were held by the Audit
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the
Audit Committee at the meetings of the Audit Committee is
set out below:

TRERMSE

FRN BRZEERITTMAGH -BEXZ
BEesKBRERLZBE RN HFELE
;o

Attendance/
Number of
Audit
Committee
Name of Director Meeting
HE /B
ZEg
EEpE =t 1
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter 2/2
R A L&
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 212
LEELE
Ms. Li Ling 2/2
EBRzL
Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
BR B 5% A&

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee during the financial year ended 31 December
2014,

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than
two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of one Executive Director: Mr. Qiu Zhongwei, three
Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong,
Peter, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms. Li Ling, and one Non-
executive Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Ms. Li Ling is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses and options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such
remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their
remunerations are determined based on their experience and
qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee had
reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and reviewed the
remuneration package of the Executive Directors and senior
management for the year of 2014.

During the year, one meeting were held by the Remuneration
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee at the meeting of the Remuneration
Committee is set out below:

7 HWERSDRMARENHFHER
FRBN_F—MERTEERBREE
BEOHMEE -

FRN FMEESRITT —REH -FHE
BgZNERFMEESSHMHELEk
;YT

Attendance/
Number of
Remuneration
Committee
Name of Director Meeting
HE %
ZE®
EspA BEHE
Ms. Li Ling 1/1
EBRat
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter 1/1
BRALTEE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 171
LEERE
Mr. Chen Shuai 1/1
BRED % 4
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei 1/1
B @ k4

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of one Non-
executive Director: Mr. Chen Shuai and three Independent
Non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Chan Wai
Kwong, Peter and Ms. Li Ling. Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. In identifying suitable director candidates and
making such recommendations to the Board, the Nomination
Committee would also take into account various aspects
of a candidate, including but not limited to his education
background, professional experience, experience with the
relevant industry and past directorships.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the board’s structure, size and composition to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills, independence and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business
of the Company and reviewed the annual confirmation of
independence submitted by Independent Non-executive
Directors and assessed their independence. Also, the
Nomination Committee will also give consideration to the
Board Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, and the board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness.

During the year, one meeting were held by the Nomination
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee at the meetings of the Nomination
Committee is set out below:

TRERMSE
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Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
Name of Director Meeting
HE/RA
ZE®g
Expg gR¥A
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 11
LEELE
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter 11
BRANEE
Ms. Li Ling 11
Bzt
Mr. Chen Shuai 11
BR B 5% A4
HESEEEZERERLAT —Z—NFFR
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has re-appointed KPMG as its external auditor
during the year ended 31 December 2014. The external
auditor is refrained from engaging in non-audit services except
for specific approved items, such as review of interim results of
the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the external auditor’s
statutory audit scope and non-audit services and approves its
fees. A remuneration of HK$3,408,000 was paid/payable to
KPMG for the provision of annual audit and review of interim
results services in 2014.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the financial controller and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company. As at 31 December 2014, the Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may: cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s external auditor,
in relation to the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chiu Ngam, Chris has been informed of the requirement
of the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that
he had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound internal
control system and reviewing its effectiveness at least
annually to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the
Group’s assets. During the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Board was assisted by the Audit Committee in reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The
Board and the Audit Committee have considered all material
aspects, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, risk management functions, as well as the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget in the review. From the view
of the Board and the Audit Committee, the Group's internal
control system was effective and there was no significant area
of concern which might affect the interests of the shareholders
of the Company.

The Group will use its best endeavour to implement changes to
further improve the Group’s internal control system whenever
necessary.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 1107, 11/F Lippo Sun Plaza, 28
Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of
the Company by mail at Unit 1107, 11/F, Lippo Sun Plaza,
28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the
Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions and
inquiries, to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December
2014.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the
Group. These include (i) holding annual and extraordinary
general meetings to provide a forum for shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board and the Board
committees; (ii) distributing corporate documents and releasing
announcements to disseminate the Group’s latest information
to the shareholders; and (iii) maintaining the Company's
website to provide an electronic means of communication with
the shareholders and the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’'s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group's financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company's website and the
communication with its shareholders.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG!

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 59 to 188, which comprise the consolidated
and the Company’s statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBAEE (£)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2015
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

mERE®EX

—E+-A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z_—=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")) (&7 ([Exl) Z25)
2014 2013
—E—mF —E2—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ft it FET FET
Turnover EERE 4 1,722,418 1,871,577
Other revenue Hipzs 5 9,905 7,911
Cost of goods sold EmiEE KA 21 (659,959) (646,997)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges 8% & E {th i 18 K& B 1052 (112,769) (106,741)
Staff costs 8 TR 6(b) (223,813) (224,705)
Operating lease expenses KERERS 6(c) (106,890) (109,821)
Depreciation expenses TERX 13(a) (139,214) (169,115)
Utilities expenses NEEERE (72,209) (74,911)
Advertisement expenses BERX (36,935) (34,465)
Impairment losses on fixed assets EEEEZRERRE 13(a)(i) (46,506)
Other operating expenses Hih & &M (107,980) (101,827)
Profit from operations FE— g 226,048 410,906
Valuation gain on an investment RE Y E GBS
property 14 166,634 226,820
Net finance costs B 7% & R %8 6(a) (146,198) (58,872)
Net gain on settlement of loan RERWEEALERZ
receivable from a related party W25 E 58 23 27,647 -
Changes in fair value on the derivative A3 % Z 4 ~ £74 15
components of convertible notes NI EED - 2,082
Changes in fair value of derivative TTESMTEZ AREE
financial instruments 25(ii) 2,822 8,752
Profit before taxation B %% Al & R 6 276,953 589,688
Income tax 1%t 7 (134,749) (115,706)
Profit for the year REE A 142,204 473,982
Attributable to: HTHALERN:
Equity shareholders of the Company  ZAQ &) fE &R 120,149 443,641
Non-controlling interests JEITE I = 22,055 30,341
Profit for the year REFEE A 142,204 473,982
Earnings per share sBREF
Basic (HK$) BER(BT) 12(a) 0.052 0.192
Diluted (HK$) e (Bx) 12(b) 0.050 0.180
The notes on pages 69 to 188 form part of these financial 691888 2 Mt sk Ty 4 Pk 7% 55 1 7% R 3%
statements. Z 8D e
HESREHEERERLAT —T—NEFR
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

RelEaREMEEKRSER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z — &

—mE+-A=1—HILFE

(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z51)
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
fftf &t THET TAT
Profit for the year REE T 142,204 473,982
Other comprehensive income for FKNEEHME2EHWE (R
the year (after tax and BEREFSEARR)
reclassification adjustments):
Items that will not be reclassified to BrEeEM HERIERY
profit or loss: HH :
— Surplus on revaluation of —BEHBEERZ
leasehold land and buildings MELTH REFREHR
held for own use 11(a) 382,751 195719
ltems that may be reclassified HEgAEfsEEBER
subsequently to profit or loss: TBH :
— Available-for-sale equity securities:  —AJ it HEREZRF S5 11(a)
net movement in fair value AR EREEEFRE
reserve (58,562) =
— Exchange differences on —BE A2 EE IEN
translation into presentation =%
currency 11(a) 32,065 97,929
(26497) e
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEE KR
for the year 356,254 _ZEEHERE
Total comprehensive income AFEEXHRSZERE
for the year 498,458 767,630
Attributable to: ATIALEWN:
Equity shareholders of the Company 722X @R & 485,003 735,773
Non-controlling interests FEFE IS RE 25 13,455 31,857
Total comprehensive income for AFEXHRSZEARE
the year 498,458 767,630

The notes on pages 69 to 188 form
statements.

part of these financial
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Consolidated statement of financial position

ma BRI R

At 31 December 2014

R-FB—HEFE+_F=+—H

(Expressed in HK$)  (LAET231)
2014 2013
—E-MOF —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt aE FExT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets Bl E & E 13(a) 3,757,677 3,352,184
Investment property wEYE 14 1,808,848 1,647,163
Intangible assets | EE 15 507,009 492,509
Goodwill Bk 16 1,387,710 1,348,075
Prepayments for acquisitions of WY 3 2 A 5RIE
properties 18 558,372 75,681
Available-for-sale equity securities At H S 5 5 19 358,981 -
Deferred tax assets BIETRIBE E 28(b) 19,525 39,277
8,398,122 6,954,889
Current assets Zﬁ??JﬁE
Short-term investments EIRE 20 586,661 -
Inventories FE 21 126,283 126,217
Trade and other receivables JrE Ui R SR T2 L At e Wi R 22 805,535 641,129
Loan receivable from a related party ~ FEWBAEA T ER 23 - 980,649
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEFELFEEAS 24 357,673 266,177
1,876,152 2,014,172
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JE {<F AR 5% R EL th A5 3K 25 1,553,022 1,512,948
Bank loans RITER 26(a) 1,445,081 434,982
Income tax payable FEA PTG B 28(a) 91,894 81,753
3,089,997 2,029,683
Net current liabilities REBEEEHE (1,213,845) (15,511)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBEE 7,184,277 6,939,378
Non-current liabilities 3Fﬁ§ﬂ§1§
Bank loans RITERK 26(b) 945,302 1,353,055
Deferred tax liabilities BT IEAE 28(b) 677,041 513,286
1,622,343 1,866,341
NET ASSETS EEFHE 5,561,934 5,073,037

The notes on pages 69 to 188 form part of these financial

statements.
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mEMBMRREK (F)

At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—E+=-H=+—H

Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z51)
2014 2013
—F-mFE —T-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fftf &t THET FBTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR 2 K fi 48 29
Share capital AR 7R 229,823 229,823
Reserves i 5,173,832 4,698,390
Total equity attributable to equity A TR REGEZLTE
shareholders of the Company 5,403,655 4,928,213
Non-controlling interests FEERR = 158,279 144,824
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 5,561,934 5,073,037

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2015.

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
EEAAR
Director

EF

The notes on pages 69 to 188 form part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of financial position

B %R &

At 31 December 2014 R=-ZE—pE+=-H=+—H

(Expressed in HK$)  (LAET231)
2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt ot FE T TETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets Bl E & E 13(b) 14,451 18,483
Interests in subsidiaries KB ARz = 17 2,942,305 517,439
2,956,756 535,922
Current assets REEE
Other receivables ot & 5k 22 20,332 2,536,480
Cash at bank and on hand RITRERFERES 24 2,576 415
22,908 2,536,895
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables H{th 3R 25 247,426 138,779
Bank loan IRITE R 26(a) 62,675 -
310,101 138,779
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(AE) EEFE (287,193) 2,398,116
NET ASSETS EEFH 2,669,563 2,934,038
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RA R #HE 29
Share capital & 7R 229,823 229,823
Reserves {1 2,439,740 2,704,215
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 2,669,563 2,934,038

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

31 March 2015.

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin

MEIAR
Director

EF

The notes on pages 69 to 188 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % —

—mE+-—A=1—HIFE

(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z27)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
YN E
Property Non-
Share Share Capital Contributed revaluation ~ Statutory ~ Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserves  reserve profits Total  interests equity
NEEMR
Rx RGEE BARE HARS fiff AERE EXRE REEA a5 FRRER BREE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr téx TEx ThEr Téxz TExr TRz TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
29(c) 29 29a))  29(Nii)  29a)i)  29(d)wi)  29(c)vii)
(Wi (K (Kt (Kt (Brat (Brat (Wit
290c)) 29()))  29)i)  29(a)ii))  29(d)iv))  29(d)(u))  29(d)i))
Balance at 1 January 2013 ~ W=Z-=£-f
-H&E& 231,474 1,382,735 13412 1,224,868 525,950 82,457 54265 766444 4,281,605 165176 4,446,781
Changes in equity for 2013: —E—-=%
ERE2H:
Profit for the year REEETH = - - - - - - 43641 443641 30341 473982
Other comprehensive income  E 2 AUz - - - - 195719 - 9413 - 29,132 1516 293,648
Total comprehensive income ~ AFE 2 E Y
for the year Fake = = = - 195719 = %413 443641 735773 31,857 767,630
Ordinary shares issued on BRTARSE
the conversion of BETLER
convertible notes 4,406 73,883 - - - - - - 78289 - 78289
Purchase of own shares BEBIRH
~ par value paid -BfEE (6,057) - - = = = - - (6,057) - (6,057)
- premium paid BB - (113,070) - - - - - - (113,070) - (113,070)
Equity-settled share-based BRI E A S AR
transactions (Note 27) NN ZR5
(Hzt27) - - 564 - - - - - 2564 - 2564
Effect on equity arising from YR B FE2 R 5
the acquisition of non- HEn I 72
controlling interests - - (46,194) - - - - - (46,194) (52,2090  (98,403)
Effect on equity arising from R ES
the redemption of the %‘I a7 2
convertible notes - - (1751) - - - - 17,511 - - -
Dividends approved in respect ~ FLAI—FED#
of the previous year EZRE (i
(Note 29(b)i}) 29b)ii) = - = = = = - @ enm) -
Appropriation to reserves ERSEE - - - - - 33604 - (33,604) - - -
(1651) (39,187  (38,061) - - 3360 - (43870) (89,165)  (52,200) (141,374)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=B-=£+=
A=T—-H&H 229823 1343548 (24649 122488 721669 116061 150,678 1,166,215 4928213 144,824 5,073,037

The notes on pages 69 to 188 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity (continued)

RERERBER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ_—FT—WHF+-_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in HK$)  (LIEITTZ351)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AR
Property Fair Non-
Share Share  Capital Contributed revaluation value Statutory Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve profits Total interests  equity
MEESR
k& RGEE ExEE HAEH B DABRRE ERRE ENBE REEA At FERER EREE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TAr TEx TEx TEn TEn TErn TExn TéEx TEx TEx TR TER
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
2(c)  290)i)  29(a)ii) 29(d)ii)  29(eNiv)  29(a)(v)  29(d)(vi))  29(cl)vii))
(Wi (Wi (Wi (Wi (Wi (Wi (Wi (Wi
29(c))  29(d)(i))  29(@)(ii)) 29(a)iii))  29(a)iv))  29(d)(v)) 29(d)(vi)) 29(d)(vii))
Balance at 1 January 2014 R=5-ME-f—
A& 29823 1343548  (24,649) 1224868 721,669 - 116061 150,678 1166215 4928213 144824 5,073,037
Changes in equity for 2014: —5-R%
BE2E:
Profit for the year AER&T - - - - - - - - 1049 10049 2205 142204
Other comprehensive income £ 2 Fl i & - - - - 35 (49,121) - 31,224 - 364,854 (8,600) 356,254
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE 2
for the year WEaE - - - -3’ (49121) - 31,224 120,149 485,003 13455 498,458
Equity-settled share-based ~ RIRIEEZ LR %
transactions (Note 27) AT
( ) = = 20,316 = = = = = = 20,316 - 20,316
Dividends approved in HE—FEEHEL
respect of the previous year i &
(Note 29(b)i) b)ii) - - - - - - - - (0871)  (29.877) - (2087)
Appropriation to reserves  BEZ L - - - - - - B3 - (338) - - -
- - 0306 = = - B3 - (5326)  (9561) (9,561)
Balance at 31 December ~ W=E-ME+=f
2014 =t-R&k 29823 1,343,548 (4333) 1224868 1,104,420  (49,121) 139446 181902 1233102 5,403,655 158,279 5561934

The notes on
statements.

pages 69 to 188 form part of these financial
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Consolidated cash flow statement

mERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —
(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z51)

—mE+-A=1—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-NF ==
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ftf it TEx FH&T
Operating activities RETH
Profit before taxation B 7 B 4 A 276,953 589,688
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation expenses wERX 13(a) 139,214 169,115
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets REERTEECER
R 6(c) 5,067 2,558
Impairment losses on fixed assets B E & E R EE B 6(c) 46,506 -
Valuation gain on an investment BEYEHERR
property 14 (166,634) (226,820)
Interest income F B A 5 (9,905) (7,911)
Net finance costs Eﬂ%z"‘é%i%%ﬁi 6(a) 146,198 58,872
Net gain on settlement of loan BEWRE AT B
receivable from a related party ZW 5 F R 23 (27,647) -
Changes in fair value on the QE- 8 PAuES- UK
derivative components of RE#
convertible notes - (2,082)
Changes in fair value of derivative TEsmIAZRAE
financial instruments & 25(ii) (2,822) (8,752)
Equity-settled share-based payment Tﬁﬂx*&%%ﬁ%%@fiﬁz
expenses /TAIEE%S'Z 6(b) 20,316 25,644
Changes in working capital: BEEeE
Increase in inventories T8 Zi* il (66) (2,855)
Increase in trade and other FELBZEETA&ﬁﬁﬂJE%Z KL
receivables 120 (464,894) (388,745)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other Fﬂﬁ%m&ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ KL
payables = R 7,372 (11,160)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REXH (£H) EE£Z
operations BRE (30,342) 197,552
Income tax paid BEPTEH 28(a) (56,217) (38,409)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (£H) EE£Z
operating activities FRE (86,559) 159,143
Investing activities REZEE
Payments for the purchase of fixed BEETEEENK
assets (106,706) (84,108)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets & & [& € & & FT 15 508 1,058 1,745
Payments for acquisitions of properties 4% %13 2 1+ 3% (163,694) (75,681)
Payments for purchase of short-term B B % Hi#R & 5K
investments (657,540) =
Proceeds from redemption of f& 01 %2 B & P 1S 3K IE
short-term investments 131,259 =
Repayment of loan receivable from a ERERBWEEA T ZEX
related party 23 655,288 =
Interest received 2B 5,718 7,911
Net cash used in investing activities REFEHERA 2 FHE (134,617) (150,133)

The notes on pages 69 to 188 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

%Aiﬁﬁlilbi‘%‘% (/:A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-—ZF—WF+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in HK$)  (LAET231)

2014 2013
—E-mE —TE—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i aF FET TAT
Financing activities Rl EEE
Proceeds from new bank loans I IRITE RS R 2,554,368 325,980
Payments of transaction costs in iz ﬁEﬁEmZx%ﬁX$
connection with new bank loans BB/ (15,215) (2,766)
Repayment of bank and other loans  {E3& R 1T & E M &% (1,986,978) (476,931)
Payments for repurchase of shares AR AN = (119,127)
Payments for redemption of unsecured & [a] £ 5 30 ZZ 12 {5 3X
notes - (21,979)
Payments for acquisition of non- Uiy Bt I foe B HE 25 2 - ER
controlling interests - (98,403)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash at 817 RIE L (&) ~
bank A% 24 (85,045) 145,442
Dividends paid to equity shareholders a2~ A &) % 5 52 [+ 1% &
of the Company (27,507) (27,777)
Other finance costs paid H 2~ gh & B A (160,534) (159,362)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFTEIELE (FEH)
financing activities ZERE 279,089 (434,923)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand BHE&RBELEEHERH 2
cash equivalents N GR) 57,913 (425,913)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—BzBE2R
1 January HEEHEER 24 208,227 628,254
Effect of foreign exchange rate IR E S E
changes (759) 5,886
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+t=—BA=+—8%2
31 December HeRREEEER 24 265,381 208,227

The notes on pages 69 to 188 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

REBRERER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 B ZE-—FT—MF+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in HK$)

(LETZZ)

Non-cash transactions

(i)

(ii)

As mentioned in Notes 19 and 23, RMB315,600,000
of the loan receivable due from Ginwa Investments
Holding Group Limited (“Ginwa Investments”), a related
party of the Group, was settled by the transfer of
30,000,000 ordinary shares in Ginwa Enterprise (Group)
Inc. (“Ginwa Enterprise”) (hereinafter referred as the
“Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares”) from Ginwa Investments
to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014.
Upon the completion of the above transfer, the Ginwa
Enterprise A-Shares are recognised as available-for-sale
equity securities in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

As mentioned in Note 22(f), a refundable deposit paid
by the Group to a third party of HK$319,257,000 in
2013 was treated as partial payments for the acquisition
of commercial properties in 2014 as mentioned in Note
18(i).

The notes on pages 69 to 188 form part of these financial
statements.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The principal activities of
the Group are the operation of department stores, a
shopping mall and supermarkets in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional
and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections
76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

Bt 7% R & Y &
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for derivative financial instruments (see Note
2(f)), equity securities classified as available-for-sale
(see Note 2(g)), leasehold land and buildings held
for own use (see Note 2(h)) and investment property
(see Note 2(i)) which are stated at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% R & Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZBIEHE - &AL ETZEZ)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE (&)

(continued)

(b) MBHBREREE (&)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net
current liabilities of HK$1,213,845,000, including
the non-current portion of bank loans repayable
on demand of HK$686,549,000 (see Note 26).
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding
the net current liabilities of the Group at 31
December 2014 because the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that (i) the Group is
up to date with the scheduled repayments on the
long-term bank loans repayable on demand and do
not consider it probable that the banks will exercise
their discretion to demand repayment; (ii) the Group
has unutilised banking facilities of HK$546,843,000
as at 31 December 2014 (see Note 26(a)(iii)); (iii)
new short-term bank loans of HK$303,460,000
have been drawn down by the Group after the end
of the reporting period; and (iv) based on a cash
flow forecast of the Group for the year ending 31
December 2015 prepared by the management,
the Group would have adequate funds to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due at least twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the

Group and the Company:

o Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27, Investment entities

° Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities

° Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets

° Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of
derivatives and continuation of hedge

accounting

U HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group's results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet

effective for the current accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other

parties) are considered.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% R & Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZBIEHE - &AL ETZEZ)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE (&)

(continued)

(d) MEBRARARFERES (&)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised gains arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those equity interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those equity
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’'s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(I)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Goodwill (continued)

(f)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (see Note 2(l)(ii)). Goodwill arising
on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash generating units,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(I)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. Fair values of
exchange traded derivatives are obtained from
quoted market price. Fair values of over-the-counter
derivatives are obtained using valuation technigues,
including discounted cash flow model and option
pricing model. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments may be embedded
in other financial instruments, for example,
convertible notes (see Note 2(0)) with an embedded
conversion option or interest-bearing borrowings
(see Note 2(p)) with an embedded warrant.
Embedded derivatives are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and
risks are not clearly and closely related to those
of the host contract; the terms of the embedded
derivatives would meet the definition of a stand-
alone derivative if they are contained in a separate
contract; and the combined contract is not held for
trading or designated at fair value. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
therein recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments are classified
as assets when their fair value is positive, or
as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
Derivative assets and liabilities arising from different
transactions are only offset if the transactions
are with the same counterparty, a legal right of
offsetting exists, and the parties intend to settle the

cash flows on a net basis.

(g) Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint

venture, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable

transaction costs.

Investments in debt and equity securities which
do not fall into the categories of investments in
securities held for trading or held-to-maturity
are classified as available-for-sale securities. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from equity securities
and interest income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in

Notes 2(w)(v) and 2(w)(vi), respectively.

When the investments in debt and equity securities
are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(I)(i)),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments in debt
and equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the

investments or they expire.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% R & Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZBIEHE - &AL ETZEZ)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE (&)

(continued)
(h) Fixed assets

(h) BEEE

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use
are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair values at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings held for own use are generally
dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Other items of fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(I)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of fixed assets
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Fixed assets (continued)

()

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the property revaluation reserve to
retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of fixed assets, less their
estimated residual values, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Estimated useful lives

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of

lease
Leasehold improvements 3-35 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-35 years
Motor vehicles 4-10 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(k)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

()]

(k)

Investment property (continued)

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(w)(iii).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(I)(ii)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as leasehold
land and buildings held for own use (see Note
2(h)) or an investment property (see Note 2(i)).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

2

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

TESTHE(8)

(k) HEEE (&)

(i)

(i)

rEEAEZEEZDE

AEBERBEEERFE
E-mABEEESEAZ
BEZBRNEMER LD
BETAEE FREE
BEASRERELERSHA
ZEE-MEIKKEHEE
B2 8RB A K @ ¥
WYAGE o MEE AE
BREZEHE-

HREHEER
MERNEEDALEHE
EREE AIREEEX
Nz REREERMRE

ST HEA UEREE
Bam AFNRR - M A H At
EER T BN RMREE
EEEMELENKABER
AIRR S - & PP B ) 3
B2 WA ERED
ERREEFNKAEN
HRED -EHEER
EEMETHHEATEER
RANRR o

WERELKEHERALZ
iz AR IE A B F
REGREH BRIFZY
EROBERBIEERZ
ME L REF (RKE
2(h)) SR EME (R M
2(i)) °



Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

V)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables
(continued)

For receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables

(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of receivable whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against the receivable directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may

have decreased:

at revalued amounts);

-  intangible assets;

- goodwill;

fixed assets (other than properties carried

— non-current prepayments for acquisitions

of properties; and

= investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial position.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
the recoverable amount for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=BEH -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial

reporting,

in respect of the first six months

of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial

year (see Notes 2(I)(i) and 2(I)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill and available-
for-sale equity securities are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which

the interim period relates.

Consequently,

if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or

loss.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(I)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see Note 2(I)(i)).
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o) Convertible notes

(i)

Convertible notes that contain an equity
component

Convertible notes that can be converted
to equity share capital at the option of the
holder, where the number of shares that
would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received
at that time do not vary, are accounted for
as compound financial instruments which
contain a liability component and an equity
component, and, where applicable, derivative
component.

At initial recognition, the liability component
of the convertible notes is measured as the
present value of the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the market
rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do
not have a conversion option. The derivative
component of the convertible notes, if any,
is measured at fair value (see Note 2(f)). Any
excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liability component and
the derivative component (where applicable)
is recognised as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated
to the liability, derivative (where applicable)
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The derivative component (if any) is
subsequently remeasured in accordance
with Note 2(f). The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The
interest expense recognised in profit or loss
on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the note is converted or redeemed.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o) Convertible notes (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Convertible notes that contain an equity
component (continued)

If the note is converted, the capital reserve,
together with the carrying amounts of the
derivative (if any) and liability components at
the time of conversion, are transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for
the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the
capital reserve is released directly to retained
profits, and any difference between the
amount paid and the carrying amounts of the
derivative (if any) and liability components is
recognised in profit or loss.

Other convertible notes

Convertible notes which do not contain
an equity component are accounted for as
follows:

At initial recognition the derivative
components of the convertible notes are
measured at fair value (see Note 2(f)). Any
excess of proceeds over the amounts initially
recognised as the derivative components
is recognised as the liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability
and derivative components in proportion to
the allocation of proceeds. The portion of
the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the
liability. The portion relating to the derivative
components is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The derivative components are subsequently
remeasured in accordance with Note 2(f). The
liability component is subsequently carried
at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Convertible notes (continued)
(ii) Other convertible notes (continued)

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts
of the derivative and liability components are
transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the
note is redeemed, any difference between the
amount paid and the carrying amounts of both
components is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs and,
where applicable, the fair value of the embedded
derivative financial instruments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method. The derivative financial
instruments, if any, are subsequently remeasured in
accordance with Note 2(f).

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(t) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes Model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
share options will vest.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(t) Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company's
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the share option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the share option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

(u) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to business
combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% R & Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZBIEHE - &AL ETZEZ)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,

the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,

if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

(w) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit

or loss as follows:
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% R & Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZBIEHE - &AL ETZEZ)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEETEE#)
(continued)
(w) Revenue recognition (continued) (w) WERER (&)
Sale of goods and net income from HEEmREEHEKA
concession sales HEE

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales are
recognised when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue or net income excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any sales discounts.
No revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the possible
return of goods, or continuing management
involvement with the goods.

Service fee income

Service fee income from the operation
of department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets is recognised when the related
services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(x)

(iv) Customer loyalty programme

(v)

(vi)

The Group's customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle
the customers to the right to exchange
for products offered under the customer
loyalty programme. The fair value of the
consideration received or receivable in respect
of the initial sale is allocated between the
programme credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to the
programme credits is estimated by reference
to the fair value of the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme, adjusted to take into account
the expected forfeiture rate. Such amount
is deferred and revenue is recognised when
the programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

(y)

(2)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated into the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars, the Group’s
presentation currency, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Statement of financial position
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January
2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (Br3E= G -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(z) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group’s turnover is substantially derived from
retail customers situated in the PRC and the Group’s
operating assets are substantially located in the
northwestern region of the PRC. Accordingly, no
segment analysis based on geographical location of
the customers and assets is provided.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 13, 14, 16, 27 and 30 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to
valuation of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use and investment property, goodwill impairment, fair
value of share options granted and financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

(a)

Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of the debtors to make the
required payments. The management bases the
estimates on the ageing of the individual receivable
balance, debtor credit-worthiness and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would
be higher than estimated.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale equity securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale
equity securities are impaired when there has
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below cost. The determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgement from
the management. When making such judgement,
the Group considers a variety of factors, including
but not limited to the normal volatility of the
security price, the length of the period over which
the fair value is lower than cost, the magnitude of
the decline in fair value and the financial position of
the investee.

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of long-
lived assets as described in Note 2()(ii). The
carrying amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically or when indications are identified in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to the
level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(d) Depreciation

(e)

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account the estimated residual values,
if any. The management reviews the estimated
useful lives and the residual values, if any, of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful
lives and the residual values, if any, are based
on historical experience with similar assets. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilised. In determining the amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognised, significant
judgement is required relating to the timing and
level of future taxable profits, after taking into
account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.
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Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the PRC.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold
to customers (net of value added tax or other sales
tax and discounts), net income from concession
sales, rental income from operating leases and
management and administrative service fee income.
The amount of each significant category of revenue
and net income recognised during the year is
analysed as follows:

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

4 EXBRIBBME

(a)

3
AEBEZETEXRHANTEE
LRERS BYHLRBRT

2

EXBHEAFTFEL ZEmiH
SEE (NREE/RKEME
EMRIE) RHAEEHEEF
WA -REHEZHS WA A
REBRITHRBERA - RF
N ERRSEETERERIA
FEBER Bz oMM :

2014 2013

—E-MF —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FH&T

Sales of goods EmiEE 786,059 787,480

Net income from concession sales T EAR BB F WA 721,886 870,251

Rental income from operating leases KEMEE2HES WA 140,770 141,938
Management and administrative service &2 & 77K R% & WA

fee income 73,703 71,908

1,722,418 1,871,577

The Group engages in the retail business, and
accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s customer base is diversified and
has no customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). Details
of concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note
30(a).

Information on gross revenue

Gross revenue represents the gross amount
arising from the sales of goods and concession
sales charged to retail customers, and rental
income from operating leases and management
and administrative service fee income charged to
tenants, net of value added tax or other sales tax
and discounts.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

AEBRETEEL Bt K
RABERAE AEEZRF#
Zixlt TEEFPEASEE IR
SHEBBAEEREE_T—NO
F+_A=+—HIFEL%¥
BHZ10% (T —=F 4|)o
EAEREERR 2 FIFENH
5¥30(a) °

HRBERZEHZEH

U ESEEmEE STATER
FZi&rrEfEEE KEMHEZ
e WA R AEFWE 2 &2
RAITHIRTS B WA 2 4878 (HBR
BERIEMHERREER

%) -



Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

4 EXBRIOBWE (4)

Turnover (continued) (a) &X® (&)
Information on gross revenue (continued) HERREEZER (&)
2014 2013
S e S e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FH&T
Sales of goods EmiEE 786,059 787,480
Gross revenue from concession sales BrERHE 2 Bl 4,034,940 4,896,712
Rental income from operating leases KEHEEZHESBA 140,770 141,938
Management and administrative service &2 R 1THEARTS & Uk A
fee income 73,703 71,908
5,035,472 5,898,038

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed below.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments:

o Department stores and shopping mall: this
segment operates 8 department stores and a
shopping mall.

o Supermarkets: this segment operates 7
supermarkets.

(i) Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:
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W SIEARERBR AR

ERAEETELH S SE
BT B -

2 EB®E
AEEEBEGRIUEEAR
%o sl B IR D B BRI ¥ A
RN EAAKREZZRRE
EEEABBREEMTA A&
2 iR A T ME R RS D G T
2W - MBLEDEE GHABK
PENGIE: =8 K
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment information (continued)

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
s “adjusted EBITDA” i.e. "adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including interest income, investment income,
changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments, and other financial charges and
income, and “depreciation and amortisation”
is regarded as including impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets and valuation
gain or loss on investment property. To arrive
at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as
head office or corporate administration costs.
No inter-segment sales have occurred for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 is set out below.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Bt 7% R & Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 EXFERITEB®WE (£)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHE (&)
(i) Segment information (continued) (i) HBER(E)
2014
—E-OF
Department
stores and
shopping
mall Supermarkets Total
BE®S
KB B ™5 &5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET THET FHET

Revenue and net income INREFE 2 W &
from external customers W A F B8 I A 3R

and reportable segment £ 20U = N Uk
revenue and net income AFEE 1,360,393 362,025 1,722,418
Reportable segment profit  AJ3RE 2 80 F (£
(adjusted EBITDA) 8 EEEBITDA ) 433,420 16,837 450,257
2013
=
Department
stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total
BERS
MEWH L B AR T 35 BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FHET

Revenue and net income HNRE P 2 Was &
from external customers WA 558 & A] )
and reportable segment 245 ZPUL 25 K Uk
revenue and net income AFEE 1,548,136 323,441 1,871,577

Reportable segment profit B #R& 5 305 Al (48
(adjusted EBITDA) I ZLEBITDA ) 604,842 15,035 619,877

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=BEH -

LRILETZS)

4 EXBRIBWE (4)

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DE|E (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment (i) T &5 2% F LR
profit
2014 2013
—E-—MF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Reportable segment profit A] ¥R &5 75 %8 Al 450,257 619,877
Other revenue Hh U5 75 9,905 7,911
Depreciation expenses WERX (139,214) (169,115)
Impairment losses on fixed assets B & EZRERBRE (46,506) -
Valuation gain on an investment BREMEMGE WS
property 166,634 226,820
Net finance costs B 75 & B VR %A (146,198) (58,872)
Net gain on settlement of loan EEEWEEATER
receivable from a related party < W as F R 27,647 -
Changes in fair value on the T?%HXZTTFZT/TE%B %)
derivative components of A (eI
convertible notes — 2,082
Changes in fair value of derivative MESMIAZ
financial instruments N (EE 2,822 8,752
Unallocated head office and ROBLABE N
corporate administration expenses A FTTH X (48,394) (47,767)
Profit before taxation B 5 B A 276,953 589,688
OTHER REVENUE 5 Hftilzs
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Interest income MEMA 9,905 7,911




Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% R & Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(a)

(b)

Net finance costs:

(BRIF=EIER

6 BRBLAIEF

(a) MBERFRE:

EAIAETZS)

BREATEFE R, (GEA)

2014 2013

—E-mEF =%

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Interest expenses on bank loans RITERZMEXZH 207,615 167,708

Finance charges on convertible notes BRER A b A - 9,946

Bank charges and other finance costs  $R{TEA R HE MM EER 12,773 8,863

Total borrowing costs == Wi 220,388 186,517
Finance income on loan receivable from fﬂﬁl?ﬁ@)\if?}(

a related party 2 BB A (80,417) (108,738)
Waived of interest expenses accrued HEBTFEZNE

in prior years - (15,389)

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) BN R (M) F 8 6,227 (3,518)

146,198 58,872

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the BEEEXNAIRBE=S—NF

year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$Nil).

T-A=t—HLEFEER

—E—= E T/%TC)
Staff costs: (b) EIRA:
2014 2013
—E—F ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Salaries, wages and other benefits e Iﬁ&ﬁl\@ﬁﬂ 189,054 184,516
Contributions to defined contribution A€ BB SR IR ET S 5K
retirement plans 14,443 14,545
Equity-settled share-based payment LIS E AR S 2
expenses (see Note 27) S (BMEE27) 20,316 25,644
223,813 224,705
TR EEEEREGRA —FEFR
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Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 KRBANEF (&)
(b) Staff costs: (continued) (b) ETRA: ()
The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group AEERFPREKIZHBRARZ
established in the PRC participate in defined EEZ2HEMFTBTHBER 2T
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed BHIGRAKRBEREE B ZE
by the local government authorities, whereby MEARRREEELRFHEZ
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to 20% % EaT 8l 3K - IRIK Lt
the schemes at 20% of the employees’ basic RIRETE ZEZEWBATEER
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled ERIEFRRFERG A ER Lt
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a RIRGTEIZ AL B 15 A K
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC, FEDLFEZRKER -
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.
The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident AEETREEERGELER
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong sFENEA AT B REIGED 2 5%
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance ERTZEEEE—([AREMER
for employees under the jurisdiction of the Hong Bestal ([wEestEll) - &
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a Betiln—EHBLIIEAE
defined contribution retirement plan administered Bz ERHREE - RiFRES
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, E-BERHEEESHARESRS
the employer and its employees are each required HAHE 5% (FRABEEHE
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the EBR%A30,0008 T (R=ZF—H
employees’ relevant salaries, subject to a cap of & 75 A A1 A25,000%8 70) ) M
monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 SR - MoRTE R FT &) 2 fEFRAD
prior to June 2014). Contributions to the MPF BFERJE o
Scheme vest immediately.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of BRIEM B FEHEIN REE
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual MEREMRAEBNNIRZE
contributions. ffo
(c) Other items: () HtER:
2014 2013
—E-mE  —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Auditors’ remuneration ZERT BN &
— statutory audit service — AR 3,408 3,384
— other services — H A AR 75 1,018 695
Operating lease expenses in respect of: A RFLA T &IE 2 (& &
HEEM:
— buildings —B8F 106,890 106,361
— contingent rentals on —-MEHEZ
property rentals AR - 3,460
Impairment losses on fixed assets & & EZRIEERE
(see Note 13(a)(i) (R Hiat13(a)i) 46,506 -
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets REBTEEBBFHE 5,067 2,558

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Bt 7% R & Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HZEBRERAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HREBERAZBER:
profit or loss represents:
2014 2013
—F-NE —F—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Current taxation (see Note 28(a)): ZRHEA 18
(B Hf#E28(a)) -
— Provision for PRC Corporate Income  —F AP BEIBEMETH
Tax for the year B 64,217 72,170
— Under/(over)-provision in respect of —BEFEREBIRS
prior years (FBRER ) 2,378 (14,498)
66,595 57,672
Deferred taxation (see Note 28(b)): ELEBIE
(R HTzE28(b)) -
— Origination and reversal of —ERERECZEER
temporary differences o 40,678 50,045
— Write-down of deferred tax assets —WMUR IR R IR & =
(see Note 7(b)(v)) (R HIaE7(b)v)) 27,987 12,456
— Recognition of prior years’ unused —BREANKRERZ
tax losses previously not BEFEZAREA
recognised (see Note 7(b)(v)) I8 g8
(B HZE7(b)(Vv)) (511) (4,467)
68,154 58,034
134,749 115,706
S TEEEERABRAR T OFEFIR
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Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBmTRAMEBHR (4)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEIHEREEFNREAB
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: R2ABWE :
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Profit before taxation & %5 Bl i A 276,953 589,688
Expected tax on profit before tax, BRI AR A 2 TREATR IR
calculated at the rates applicable RIEERE R AR E
to profits in the tax jurisdictions SafzERREFE
concerned (see Notes (i), (ii) and (iii)) — ( ZHTaE() ~ (i) X (iii) ) 90,681 159,857
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ] 15 2 H 2 T 7S 2 & 19,837 9,099
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERT WA Z T = & = (8,796)
Tax concessions (see Note (iv)) MIBER (2 aEdv)) (39,442) (48,529)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERADABREERZ
recognised Mg & 33,819 10,584
Tax effect of write-down of deferred WORIRIE T I8 & &E 2 Fil%
tax assets (see Note (v)) 2 (BMaEWv)) 27,987 12,456
Tax effect of recognition of prior years’ #ERILAIARIER Z B@EF
unused tax losses previously not EZARABIBERZ
recognised (see Note (v)) MG B (ZHEWV) (511) (4,467)
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFERBETIR(H
prior years REEAE) 2,378 (14,498)
Income tax PS5t 134,749 115,706
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZBIEHE - &AL ETZEZ)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2013:16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made,
as the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HKS$Nil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of
25% for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC obtained approvals from the respective
tax bureaux in 2012 that they are entitled to tax
benefits applicable to entities under the Second
Phase of the Western Region Development Plan of
the PRC, and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 15% for the calendar years from
2011 to 2020.

The Group recognised previously unrecognised tax
losses of HK$511,000 (2013: HK$4,467,000) and
wrote down previously recognised tax losses and
temporary differences of HK$27,987,000 (2013:
HK$12,456,000) in 2014, as the utilisation of
these unused tax losses and temporary differences
have changed due to changes were made to the
estimates of the future operating results of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

7 HEBRBRRAMEH (8)

(b) BIEXHREFHERZRERB
RyBWMT: (&)

HiaE

)y ARBARAEERESEMK
M2 KB AR ERBREEF
BRHMEEI65% (ZT—=
F:16.5% ) c ARA R A KA
SERBBEM L ZH B
ARIBE-_ZT—WNF+=A
=+ —BLFETEEHNE
BREH BRI (=F
—=F :THm) MU KRKEE
RS TIE L R

(i) ARRRAKERTE (2
B8 ) ASNBEI SR G AR S 2 ft
JBRRRIBE K B P A B
KRR ROR R B AR T
FT{SHt e

(i) BEZZ—WF+=-A=+—
BlEFE  REBRFP BT
ZHBARABMTEDSE
ST AE25% (=T —=
£:25%) o

vy R-F—_F AKEETHE
BRI Z Mt /B 2 RIER1S AR R
BRI BREZEAR
FEAMAREAAF T
2B AT - I i
RZB——FE_ZT_FFE
FERI5%ZBETHEDER
"Hbix-

vy, R-ZZE—NE AEBER®
REMAERZMERBE
511,000 L (=& — =% :
4,467,000/ 7T ) 30 #UR 5¢ A
ERERZTIIHEE &R E
#27,987,0008 L (=F—=
£ :12,456,0008 7T) ' &
ERZEARDATEEE KT
=& 7 ARARNEEE TH B
NAZ ARG E HEE T EE
M 3% &= 2 4L

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of

8 EEH
BIBEFHEERAGEH (6225 )5F
RBEBEFBATED

T8I 11 (2
1

(FRE)F16HR)REZEEFHM

the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. wn
32), is as follows:
2014
“E-mF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonuses contributions  Sub-total  payments Total
g
BER A &1k
E=pe RUEN  BRERAL HEMR M RBAR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TER TER TEn TEn
(Note (i)
(Hizt()
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) R—BE4
(1E) 3733 347 - 17 4,097 635 4,732
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei BhEssE 5 - - i 5 L 5
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin FRALE 1,884 1,784 1,894 17 5,579 1,391 6,970
Mr. Sha Yingje PEALE % - L = % 890 986
Non-executive directors ~ #3H{TEE
Mr. Chen Shuai 32 Pt 5 - . . 5 _ 5
M. Qu Jiagi MRELE 108 245 - 10 363 1391 1,754
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter R A X %5 180 - - - 180 - 180
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BEELA 96 - - - 96 - 96
Ms. Li Ling ERuL 180 - - - 180 384 564
6,287 2,376 1,894 a4 10,601 4,691 15,292
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% R & Y &

8 EEFM (&)

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

2013
—T-=%
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
e
R TR E A BRI
EXfie EmE WETL sTEIfE g R I3 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL THL THL
(Note (i))
(Ht()
Executive directors HTEZE
Mr. Wu Yiian (Chairman) ~ R—25%4
(re-designated from (£F) (B
non-executive director =
on 19 February 2013) —AThH
BIEHTE
Z3H) 1,200 170 = 15 1,385 1,080 2,465
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei BhELE 5 = - - 5 _ 5
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin ~ ElfiA%4 1,575 1,395 1,960 15 4,945 1,654 6,599
Mr. Sha Yingjie PERLE 9% 474 489 29 1,088 1,09 2,184
Non-executive directors ~ ##TEE
Mr. Chen Shuai RN 5 - - - 5 = 5
Mr. Qu Jiagi (re- hmEREEE
designated from (R=F—=
executive director on 19 EZA1A
February 2013) AB#TE
e 108 548 187 29 1,472 1,654 3,126
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, B ALEE
Peter 180 - - - 180 - 180
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BERELE 9% - - - 9% - 9%
Ms. Li Ling BRZL 180 - = = 180 337 517
3,445 2,587 3,236 88 9,356 5,821 15177

There were no amounts paid during the year to the
directors in connection with their retirement from
employment or compensation for loss of office with the
Group, or inducement to join. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

AREBENF AL &R EFHER AR
5 R PR Bk R R A B RIS B R 2 SRR o
FAVBEEHRREARAERZTAHE 2

ke

HARSTE

RRERARAT

T —NFEFR
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Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

Note:

(i) These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option schemes. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note
2(t)(ii). The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of share options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in

the Directors’ Report and Note 27.

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2013: four) are directors whose emoluments are

disclosed in Note 8.

The emoluments in respect of the other two (2013: one)

individuals are as follows:

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

8 EEHM )
Mt

() ZEBRERBEARFBRETS
BRYESEZEREZMAFEE Z
SEEEZEBERREAKEIIRN
B FE2(0)BRD T RR 5 2 & EH R
AE-ARULSEMENZFE 2
RXIZGRAEETZBREHRE
EREZSREZ [BRESE] —
BRI Mt k2742 BE

9 EBEFAL

ERE&EBHFALH =R (=ZF
—=F NR)PRES MEAMESH
BERK E8HKE -

BREEMMRE (ZE—=F:—%)A
TzBEm T

2014 2013

—E-NF —T—=4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH& T FETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #% 2B R EHEMEWEF 2,228 479
Discretionary bonuses B IFIEAL 2,207 558
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEI R 30 29
Share-based payments B 17 15 3K 746 976
5,211 2,042

No emoluments were paid or payable to these employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office during the year.

The emoluments of the two (2013: one) individuals who
are not directors and who are amongst the five highest paid

individuals of the Group are within the following bands:

FRIWEFZFEE T
e EREMAEIRIMAREER
B 2 SRR AE BB (5

ME(ZTE—=F:—%)AUFEFH
BRASEAZRSHALZERA
TZHMNFLATEE :

2014 2013

—E-NF —F—=
Number of Number of
HK§ individuals individual
BT & Bl A 2 &5l A8
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1 -
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 = 1
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 1 -
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of HK$26,843,000 (2013:
profit of HK$6,992,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s
(loss)/profit for the year:

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

10 ARARREA2mF

ARBIRREGZEGEEENBE
26,843,000 tx BE (= —=
F 5% 716,992,000 7T) - ERAR
A BHRERANERE -

U ESERARAZAEE (F5IR)
AR AT

2014 2013
—E-F —ET—=
HK$'000 HK$’000
FE T FAET
Amount of consolidated (loss)/profit MNARDNR B EHRRANEZIEZ
attributable to equity shareholders X RS (BE)
dealt with in the Company’s financial il
statements (26,843) 6,992
Impairment losses on interests in RAREREHERME R R 2 #
subsidiaries recognised during the year wmZRMEEE (AKE17)
(see Note 17) (228,071) -
The Company’s (loss)/profit for the year ARG ZAFE (Ei8)
(see Note 29(a)) wm A (R aE29(a)) (254,914) 6,992
11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 HttZ2mERE
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of (a) EEMZEWESHRERZ
other comprehensive income Figs s
2014 2013
“E-mE “%-=f%
Before Tax Net-of- Before Net-of-
tax  (expense)/ tax tax Tax tax
amount benefit amount amount expense amount
BB
BRHE (BX)/ k& BR 3¢ it
BRSHE k# BELE BieE BEAX HELE
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FEx FHEx FTAET  FTEx  TExR
(Note 28(b)) (Note 28(b))
(Hz£28(b)) (Hi5£28(b))
Surplus on revaluation of EfBEEAREL N
leasehold land and buildings ~ RIEF 2 B
held for own use (see Note (ZH#13(a))
13(a)) 509,365 (126,614) 382,751 260,455 (64,736) 195,719
Available-for-sale equity ML EERES:
securities: net movement in fair A4 EfEEEHFE
value reserve (68,896) 10,334 (58,562) = = =
Exchange differences on BMEREREBELR
translation into presentation ~ Z%&
currency 32,065 - 32,065 97,929 - 97,929
Other comprehensive income  HEft 2@l 472,534  (116,280) 356,254 358,384 (64,736) 293,648
HESTEHEERERAT T —NFEFR
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Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

11 Hbz2mEWb= (&)

(continued)
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) Htb2mEUW =MD BIFEH
including reclassification adjustments DEAE
2014 2013
—ZE-mF —_T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Available-for-sale equity securities: A ERERES
changes in fair value recognised FRNERANLEBEES
during the year (68,896) =
Net deferred tax credited to other ABETERMEEkEY
comprehensive income AR RE 5 TR % #R 10,334 -
Net movement in the fair value reserve FRA L BEHEZEFE
during the year recognised in other REAM 2K R MER
comprehensive income (58,562) -

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

12 SRER
(a) BREXEF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of HK$120,149,000 (2013:
HK$443,641,000) and the weighted average of
2,298,233,000 ordinary and convertible preference
shares (2013: 2,306,994,000 ordinary and
convertible preference shares) in issue during the
year, calculated as follows:
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EREARBFEZEREARARTR
B 5% #1120,149,0005% 7T
— T — =14 :443,641,000/&
o) R ERNE EITRMD 2 M
15 #2,298,233,0000% & 3@ I
Mal BBk (T —=F:
2,306,994,0008% & i@ i% K& 7] #2
IRELAR)ATERT :



Notes to the financial statements

MsmEgE |19

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 BRER (&)
(a) Basic earnings per share (continued) () BREXER (&)
(i) Weighted average number of shares (i) REGMEFHE
2014 2013
—E-mFE —_ET—=F
‘000 ‘000
TR T &
Issued ordinary and convertible R—AR—BzEZETE
preference shares at 1 January AL K AT R B S AR
(see Note (i) (R HTaE@)) 2,298,233 2,314,744
Effect of conversion of EBAIRR R 2
convertible notes = 24,652
Effect of shares repurchased EACI - - = (32,402)
Weighted average number of R+-—A=+—HzE
ordinary and convertible L & AT AR B R AR
preference shares at 31 December Sl ¥ 5 £
(see Note (i) (B HaEd)) 2,298,233 2,306,994
Note: Bt &t
() The holder of the convertible preference (i) ARBEELERZEEAS
shares is entitled to receive the same rate of ERETEKSE AR
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. Rzl RESKRE -H
Accordingly, for the purpose of the calculation b EESREARR
of basic earnings per share, the convertible AmE srEE TR
preference shares issued have been included M INEFEEHEEE A
in the calculation of the weighted average Al AR B SR A% o

number of shares in issue.

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 SRER (&)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$120,149,000
(2013: HK$441,476,000) and the weighted average
number of 2,417,495,000 ordinary and convertible
preference shares (diluted) (2013: 2,446,972,000
ordinary and convertible preference shares
(diluted)), calculated as follows:

(i) Profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company (diluted)

BREEER
EREERFZKIBARRIRE
J& 165 3% #1120,149,0005 7T ( =
L — =4 : 441,476,000 7T )
RERNEEITRD 2 INEFEH
£02,417,495,0008% & i A% & A]
BmRELR(BE) (Z—=
£ :2,446,972,0000% & i@ A% &
ATMREER () ) itEW
T

(i) F2FARREAMZF
(#8)

2014 2013
—E-ImEF —ET-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FH&T
Profit attributable to equity 1% 51 FE A i A
shareholders 120,149 443,641
After tax effect of effective interest — AR ZiE B & 2%
on the liability components of ERF B ZBRTE
convertible notes - - 4,712
After tax effect of changes in fair MABRBRER 2074
value recognised on the derivative HOtER L ARE
components of convertible notes BE T GTiETE = (6,877)
Profit attributable to equity IRER FE (R A (85 )
shareholders (diluted) 120,149 441,476
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 BRER (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b) BRBBEER (&)
(i) Weighted average number of shares (i) REGMEFGE (#F)
(diluted)
2014 2013
—E-mFE —_ET—=F
‘000 ‘000
TR’ TR
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ —BF=+—HB 2
and convertible preference shares B AR K R AR
at 31 December 18 5 B N4 15 2K 2,298,233 2,306,994
Effect of conversion of convertible IR AR AR B L AR
preference shares R 117,707 117,707
Effect of conversion of convertible HBRIBRERZ
notes T = 19,410
Effect of deemed issue of shares RABEBARRF]
under the Company’s share option HE AR AT & 25 1T
schemes Ripzze& 1,555 2,861
Weighted average number of R =H Shassi=iv
ordinary and convertible LB K AR E
preference shares (diluted) SRR N T 35 8 (
at 31 December &) 2,417,495 2,446,972
HRSTEEELERERAT T —OFFR
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13 FIXED ASSETS

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

13 BEEE
(a) The Group (a) =%H
Leasehold Furniture,
land and  Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
RELH HENE G -£EB
RkETF %% &L BHIA ERIR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THT THET THT THL
Cost or valuation: RAHEE:
At 1 January 2013 RZB-=F-H—-H 2,651,828 423127 84,699 10,475 5714 3,175,843
Exchange adjustments  [E} % 85,411 14,193 4,919 378 173 105,074
Reclassification from RRENEENIE

investment property (RHiit14)

(see Note 14) 106,950 - - - - 106,950
Additions NE = - 46,246 808 37,054 84,108
Transfer in/(out) BA/(H) = 37,470 = = (37,470) =
Disposals BE - (135) (14,180) (598) - (14,913)
Surplus on revaluation SRR (EHH

(see Note 11(a) 11(a) 260,455 - - - - 260,455
Less; elimination W EERE

of accumulated

depreciation (106,040) - - - - (106,040)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-—=

+ZA=1-H 2,998,604 474,655 121,684 11,063 5,471 3,611,477
Representing: g
Cost AR - 474,655 121,684 11,063 5,471 612,873
Valuation - 2013 fhE-—E-=F 2,998,604 - - - - 2,998,604
2,998,604 474,655 121,684 11,063 5,471 3,611,477
Accumulated ZHHE:

depreciation:

At 1 January 2013 RZB-=%-F—H - 146,783 42,216 1,379 - 196,378
Exchange adjustments B A 1,566 5,773 2,876 235 - 10,450
Charge for the year ERfE 104,474 48,133 15,028 1,480 - 169,115
Written back on disposals & & [ = (135) (9,961) (514) = (10,610)
Elimination on revaluation ~ E L i (106,040) - - - - (106,040
At 31 December 2013 R_E—=4F

+=A=1-H - 200,554 50,159 8,580 - 259,293
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%

+-A=1-H 2,998,604 274,101 71,525 2,483 5471 3,352,184
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13 EEEE (&)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) &x&K8 (&)
Leasehold Furniture,
land and  Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings improvements  equipment vehicles in progress Total

ety AENRX  RECXE
k&T k8 kEE  ERIA  EEIE aif
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TATL TATL AL

Cost or valuation: RAAMEE:
At 1 January 2014 RZE-WE

—A-H 2,998,604 474,655 121,684 11,063 5,471 3,611,477
Exchange adjustments 5 R (10,263) (1,356) (543) @) ¥ (12,210)
Reclassification BNA 8 = 26,193 (26,376) 183 = 5
Additions NE - - 25,819 590 713,364 99,773
Transfer in/(out) gA/ (1) - 57,630 12,816 - (70,446) r
Disposals RE - (8,357) (3,713) = = (12,070)
Surplus on revaluation EfR%

(see Note 11(a)) (BhE11a) 509,365 - - - - 509,365
Less: elimination of HEEEE

accumulated depreciation (83,835) = = - - (83,835)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-EF

+-A=+-H 3,413,871 548,765 129,687 11,795 8,382 4,112,500
Representing: K.
Cost KA = 548,765 129,687 11,795 8,382 698,629
Valuation - 2014 BE-ZZ-mE 3413871 - - - - 3413871

3,413,871 548,765 129,687 11,795 8,382 4,112,500
Accumulated depreciation EiHTERAERE:
and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2014 RZZ-MF

-A—H - 200,554 50,159 8,580 - 259,293
Exchange adjustments fE A% 344 (342) (346) (66) £ @10)
Reclassification BHA 8 - 11,340 (11,424) 84 . =
Charge for the year ERE 83,491 36,635 18,037 1,051 . 139,214
Impairment losses (see Notes BB (2 Hiz6(c)

6(c) and 13(3)(i)) F13()) - 46,506 - = = 46,506
Written back on disposals R ER &M - (3,120) (2,825) - = (5,945)
Elimination on revaluation ~ EfF i (83,835) - - - - (83,835)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MF

+ZA=t-H - 291,573 53,601 9,649 - 354,823
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2014 RZE—F

+ZA=t-H 3,413,871 257,192 76,086 2,146 8,382 3,757,677

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(@) The Group (continued)

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

13 BIEEE (&)
(a) &%= (4&)

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Had the revalued properties held MEMEIEE B
for own use been carried at cost TR AR 2T E &
less accumulated depreciation and BEEEYREERZ
impairment losses, the carrying AREE
amount would have been 2,030,074 2,090,225
(i) Impairment losses (i) BEEE

Certain of the Group’s department store
operations have continued to incur losses since
their respective establishments, which were
mainly attributable to both the competition
from department stores in the surrounding
areas and the ongoing anti-corruption
campaign in the PRC. Hence, the management
of the Group considered fixed assets, namely
leasehold improvements, related to these
operations may have been impaired. At 31
December 2014, the Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of these assets to be
HKS$Nil, and as a result, the carrying amounts
of these assets were written down to their
recoverable amounts. Accordingly, impairment
losses of HK$46,506,000 were recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The estimates of the recoverable amounts
were based on value-in-use calculations.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13 BIEEE (&)
(b) The Company (b) AAF
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
HEl-£E
R&RE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2013 B —=E === === -
Additions NE 20,163
At 31 December 2013 RIF-ZF T2 A= AN 2 0163
Accumulated depreciation: Rt E:
At 1 January 2013 n==—=="H=H -
Charge for the year FRFTE 1,680
At 31 December 2013 RIF-ZF+ZA=T— AR 1,680
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F+-HA=+—H 18,483
Cost: B
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 R_E-—OF—-—A—BR
—E—NFE+=-A=+—H 20,16%"
Accumulated depreciation: ZitiE:
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—mF—H—H 1,680
Charge for the year FANE 4,032
At 31 December 2014 R-T—EET = A =l = N Balalis
Net book value: BRIEEE :
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZBE-—WE+-_A=+—H 14,451

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of leasehold
land and buildings held for own use and
investment property

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group's leasehold land and buildings
and investment property measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

J Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

13 BIEEE (&)

() HEFERCHEHELHREFR
REVMEZRARETE

(i)

RAEER
TREJNHERRRE
FUHEEFECAEEZ
HETHEEFARKE
MEZAREBE BREZR
RERA=ZB7 K E
(REBUBREERNF13
B [AAHEATE| 2EER)
NE-BAREHEDR
ZEZRDZEMTEET
SRR ABIEZ AR
MENEBERETE

s FAfiE:-EEH
% — R A HE (B
REtERRBEEE
BERERMSZAR
RABRE)FELZ
AVHIEK

s HE_AfE-ERE
— & ABE (AR
BEENE R ATE
Za AR B K
EREATAIBES
ABEBEFEZRAR
B NAI B R AR
R ET IS BIERREH
TZBARIE -

.+ E=QEE:EMAE
AT B A B
HEZARE
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

13 BIEEE (&)

() BEERAZHELHREFR
REVMEZRAAETE (F)

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of leasehold
land and buildings held for own use and
investment property (continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AREER(E)

The Group
rEE
Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 2

TERF-RZDAETFE

2014 2013
—ZE-mEF —T—=F
Recurring fair value HK$'000 HK$000
measurements BEMHEDARLETE FET FAT
Leasehold land and buildings BHIEEBRZEE
held for own use T REF
(see Note 13(a)) (R HiaE13(a)) 3,413,871 2,998,604
Investment property "EYE
(see Note 14) (RHfat14) 1,808,848 1,647,163

During the year ended 31 December 2014, BHE-_Z—MOME+=-A

there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(2013: no transfer). The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

All of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
held for own use and investment property
were revalued as at 31 December 2014. The
valuations were carried out by a qualified
surveyor, Roma Appraisals Limited, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being
valued. The Group’s Financial Controller has
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

=t+—HIFE WEE—
AR EREE — AR 2 B el A
SEHE=R(ZF—=5F:
mEEh) o AEB 2 BUR AR
B REHRERA
REBRS D HE -

AEEMARKIEERZHE
ETHWEEFUARKEY
ER_T—DmOFE+_-A
=t+—RETER 2B
BER—RAERAEME
FEERFEBERAR] (FE
BEMEE &8 - WARE
REGEEMEMELEY
RN O HGERR) #&
T -RERARFERSEH
HEfT AR - NEE 2 8
T #8822 EL 8 2 A 7 &% A8
BAAERREGESR-

BEEERERAT —Z-HFEFR
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Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of leasehold

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

13 BIEEE (&)

land and buildings held for own use and

investment property (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings
held for own use and investment property
located in the PRC is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square meter basis using market data

() HEFERCHEHELHREFR
REWMEZAAERE (F)

(i) B=RIAS(ETEBIER

Z (5B T 5 R A B 1%
NRPEzHEERZHE
B REFARKEY
EZRAEEATSLER
AEE HEE2ERHLEL
BMFERE VT AKERE
EFER AR B Z W5

which is publicly available. Bt E A BRERE-
14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14 BEWHE
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—{F —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Valuation: {8 :
At 1 January n—H—H 1,647,163 1,480,020
Exchange adjustments PE X & (4,949) 47,273
Reclassification to fixed assets BN EEETEEE
(see Note 13) (B HraE13) - (106,950)
Fair value adjustments (see Note 13(c)) NAREFHE (LZHE13() 166,634 226,820
At 31 December R+t=—A=+—8H 1,808,848 1,647,163
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BEEE
The Group
Trademark-
use-right
rEE
BEERRE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and RN—_ZT—=F—H—8"
1 January 2014 —_E—=F4+-_A=+—HBEK
—E—NmNFE—H—H 492,509
Exchange adjustments FE o, 32 14,500
At 31 December 2014 R_ZE—WHE+-A=+T—8H 507,009
Accumulated impairment losses: Rt EERBE:
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 31 R-_BE—=F—F—H —&F—=
December 2014 F+-—A=+—RAK=ZE—NF
+=-—A=+—H -
Carrying amount: BRMEE -
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NE+=-_A=+—H 507,009
At 31 December 2013 N =5— = =t | 492,509

The Group's trademark-use-right represents the Group's NEBzEEFRARIENEERGE [£7E ]
use of the trademark “Ginwa” which the Group has ZERAE EREBEEESBNERED
acquired through its acquisitions of department store and B RBR TS ERRES-

supermarket operations in prior years.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

16 GOODWILL 16 BE
The Group
rEE
HK$'000
FHET
Cost: R
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and R—ZB—=F—HF—8"
1 January 2014 —E—=%1+-_A=1+t—HK
—ZET-NMFE—HA—H 1,677,648
Exchange adjustments bE 5, 8 B 49,556
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NFE+-_RA=+—H 1,727,204
Accumulated impairment losses: Rt RERBE:
At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 R—EBE—=F—H—HK
—E—=F+"-A=+—H 329,573
Exchange adjustments bE 5 & 9,921
At 31 December 2014 R-ZFE-—HF+=-—H=1+—H 339,494
Carrying amount: BRMEE
At 31 December 2014 RZEBE—WNFE+_—_A=1+—H 1,387,710
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+_H=+—H 1,348,075

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating HEBEBENTHKE AEHE RBLET
units identified according to the department store and PR AT S RER OB EELRE

supermarket operations acquired as follows: A7 :
At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
+=A +=A
=t+—H =+—"H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Century Ginwa Company Ltd. LS ERMDER AT
(“Ginwa Bell Tower") ([REEE]) 779,764 757,254
Golden Chance (Xi‘an) Limited Golden Chance (Xi‘an)
Limited 333,874 324,355
Ideal Mix Limited Ideal Mix Limited 274,072 266,466
1,387,710 1,348,075
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Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets prepared by the directors of the Company covering
a five-year period. These cash flow projections adopted
annual growth rates ranging from 3% to 10% (2013: from
9% to 13%), which are based on the Group’s historical
experience with these operations and adjusted for other
factors that are specific to each cash generating unit. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimate weighted average growth rate of 3% (2013: 3%
to 5%) which is consistent with market concensus on long-
term growth rate of consumer markets in the PRC. The cash
flows are discounted using discount rates ranged from 15%
to 16% (2013: from 14% to 15%). The discount rates used
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective
cash generating units.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

16 BE (&)

IR E A B AR A] Uk [ B8R T R A
EBEgEMET - B@AEDNEAR
BAAREEHM A FHRGEENITE
HEAEENREREAN -ZER
eRmERADBEASERZEHE
BeRELEKEBHEAFEREERBI%E
10% (ZZF—=%F 1 9% % 13% ) 1T
HE U (EReELEEMNRET
CEMAZFAE - BAALFHARMZE
EmEFBMETINEFHEREI%
(ZZE—=F:3%%5% ) HETHE -
ZIEREEAFBEET S 2 REE
REMBHEB B -BREREHRA
BEIE RN FLR15%E16% (ZT—=
F:14%E15% ) EITRRR - P& A
BRI E BRI ATAR IR R R BRI
SEEBEMEREEERR-

17 REB AT 2R

The Company

AT

2014 2013

—Z2-IF T =%

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FAT

Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRGD R AE 526,977 517,440
Less: impairment losses AR EEE - (M)

526,977 517,439

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW R EEE I B A R FKIR

of the Group (see Note 22(d)) (2 HfiE22(d)) 2,664,219 -
Less: impairment losses B OREETE (248,891) -
... ZA53Z5NNN . =

2,942,305 517,439

HESTEHEERERAT T —NFEFR
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Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

132

17

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets

or liabilities of the Group.

17

RKTEAR 2R (4)

B B R A e A
ERAEZHEBATRE-

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERLY
Place of The
establishment Particulars of Group's Held Held
and  registered and  effective by the by Principal
Name of company operations  paid up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries activities
EEMRAR AREz HEARAE HANWERT
TR RIREXBH kxgH  BRER BE "E TEER
Ginwa Bell Tower* The PRC  RMB235,500,000 83.88% - 83.88% Operation of
e ERNBERAR i AEE department store
235,500,0007C REBEES
Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Mall Company Limited* H ARE department store
HREESEAERY 50,000,000 REAEnS
BLERAR
Shaanxi Century Ginwa Tangrenjie The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Shopping Mall Company i ARE department store
Limited* 20,000,0007T RE2BEH%S
RAELLEEEAGHS
EREEAR
Xi‘an Century Ginwa Nandajie The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Shopping Mall Company i ARE department store
Limited* 5,000,0007T RE2BEHS
RZEEeEEAEEDT O
BRAR
Xi'an Century Ginwa Saigo The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Shopping Mall Company i ARE department store
Limited* 30,000,0007c BREBERS
RZEREEEREY
BRAR
Xi‘an Century Ginwa Shopping The PRC HK$65,000,000 100% = 100% Operation of
Mall Company Limited* H 65,000,000/ 7T department store
[EEQuE k1A REBEHS
BRAR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 RBRATZER (4)
Proportion of ownership interest
RERERLD
Place of The
establishment Particulars of Group's Held Held
and  registered and effective by the by Principal
Name of company operations  paid up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries activities
BEEMRAR AREz HARE HWERF

NEEB RIREFH kEgs  BRER BE 58 TEXH

Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of

Commerce Company Limited* H ARE department stores

Rt L e EHE 3,000,0007% and supermarkets

BRAR ReBEABR

BRI

Xi'an Yixin Property Management The PRC RMB536,885,750 100% = 100% Properties

Company Limited* H ARE management

REEENEER 536,885,7507C NEEE
BRAA

Shaanxi Qianhui Properties The PRC RMB252,800,000 100% - 100% Operation of

Company Limited* i ARE shopping mall

RAETEEXARAA 252,800,0007C R2BMDL

Xi'an Honghui Property The PRC  RMB124,000,000 100% - 100% Properties

Management Company Limited* H ARE management

BRBENEER 124,000,0007C NEEE
BRAR

* The English translation of the names of these companies * RERNFIZEXEEERSE %

are for reference only. The official names of these FRAIZEREBUAFXPE-

companies are in Chinese.

WRSIEARTERBRA — T UFEER
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

17

18

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is summarised financial information
relating to Ginwa Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of
the Group which has material non-controlling interests
("NCI"), and is before inter-company elimination.

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

17 RMMB AR ZER (&)
AT BARD M — G S AR
EXZHBATSIEEIHBEE
BHEE - RN D FIRIHE S o

2014 2013
—E—{F —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TETT
Turnover LT 488,367 626,578
Profit for the year IR F E s T 136,820 188,220
Profit for the year attributable to NCI NGF[E IR IR M 25 B 1 Vi A 22,055 30,341
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,126,670 285,591
Current assets MBEE 1,573,494 2,475,959
Current liabilities mENE & (1,718,284) (1,859,852)
Non-current liabilities ERBAGE - (3,286)
Net assets BEFE 981,880 898,412
Net assets attributable to NC| JEIER S B E E TR 158,279 144,824
PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF 18 WYX ZTRNRKIE
PROPERTIES
The Group
REHE
2014 2013
—E-MOF —EF—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FETT
Prepayments for acquisition of commercial U 8% 75 3 ¥ % 2 T8~ FUB
properties (see Notes (i) and 34) (R M) K34) 444,923 -
Prepayments for acquisition of an WHE—IBE &t TEES
underground parking compound 2 B RIE
(see Note (ii) ( B K &£ (i) 75,421 75,681
Prepayments for acquisition of residential U B (X =¥ ~ Fa (1B
properties (see Note (iii)) ( 5 B 32 iii) ) 38,028 -
558,372 75,681
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

18 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF
PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The amounts at 31 December 2014 represent partial
payments made by the Group for its intended acquisition
of commercial properties under development that are
situated in the PRC. On 4 December 2014, the Group,
through Ginwa Bell Tower, entered into an acquisition
agreement with Shanghai Huade Investment Company
Limited (“Huade Investment”), pursuant to which
Huade Investment agreed to procure a project company
to develop the above properties in accordance with
the requirements of Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell
Tower agreed to purchase part of the above properties
for an aggregate consideration of RMB1,651,112,750
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,092,934,000). These
properties are intended to be used by the Group to
expand its retail operations. In accordance with the
above agreement, the development of these properties is
expected to be completed in 2018.

The amounts represent payments made by the Group
for its intended acquisition of an underground parking
compound situated at one of the properties owned by
the Group. In 2013 and 2014, the Group, through a
wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into various agreements
with a third party to acquire the above underground
parking compound for a consideration of RMB59,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$75,421,000). The above
acquisition has yet to be completed as of 31 December
2014, as the existing owner of the underground
parking compound is in the process of obtaining the
title ownership certificate of the underground parking
compound before the transfer can take place. The
directors of the Company expect the above acquisition to
be completed by the end of 2015.

The amounts at 31 December 2014 represent payments
made by the Group for its intended acquisitions of three
residential properties. The directors of the Company
confirmed that these properties are to be used as
housing benefits for either the existing or future senior
management of the Group. The directors of the Company
expect the above acquisition to be completed by the end
of 2015.

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BIE=HE  BRILETES)

18 WEBMRZANRKE (&)

it i -
()

(ii)

(iii)

W SIEARERBR AR

RZE-—WE+ZA=+—RH2
REEASEBHRKEBECRFEZ
TEREEYFEMIEL 2 2D IR
RZZE—WOF+=-AWA - ~&E
EREIEEEHE FBERRKRER
RAA([TE@IRE )T
OB EERREREREEE
AR RE S EEE Bk LM
ME mMEEEERBUNBREA
R #1,651,112,7507T (HER L
2,092,934,0005% 7T ) HE B #p o £t
ME-ZNERAASERARER
TEEBKLE - BE LiRE ZF
MEZFHEHERER_Z—N\Fx
ﬁjzo

ZERBEEAEBBRBEMNR S
BHP-BEAYWEZH N EES
BEMEHZNR - R=2F—Z=F
;FZZE—NF AEEERA—HE
EHAEMBRARE —REBE =R
HE e AU EE il N E B
£ R{EBAAR59,500,0007T (48
Z 475,421,000 L) c R = F
—MmME+=—A=+—8  LaidkiE
FHHMATK RE A T EES
EEBEHA AE#ETEENIE
Wi R E T EEBERE Y
FTEE - AR EEEH it
WEEEER - —AFFKAIT
ﬁjzo

R-F-—EFE+-_A=t—BZ&Z
FLREAREREBE=0EED
2R -ARAEEHER ZEY
ERBEAKEREARRZBR
ERBZEERN -ARAESR
H A WERR - —AFEAT
B o

T —NFEFR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY SECURITIES

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

19 AL EEDES

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAT
Listed in the PRC (see Note 30(f)(i)) R ET (M EE30(1)() 358,981 =

The available-for-sale equity securities represent the
30,000,000 Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares transferred from
Ginwa Investments to the Group as a partial settlement
of the loan receivable from Ginwa Investments (see
Note 23). The 30,000,000 Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares
were initially valued at RMB337,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$427,877,000) upon the completion
of the transfer on 24 November 2014, which were
recognised with reference to the closing price of
RMB11.25 (equivalent to approximately HK$14.22) of
the Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange on the same day.

The fair value of these equity securities at 31 December
2014 are re-measured based on the closing price of
the Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, resulting in a decrease in fair value of
HK$68,896,000, which was included in the fair value
reserve in equity (see Note 11(b)).
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AN EESEFERSTERER
7N £5 [B] 8 :£30,000,000/% & £ 1 ¥
ABRRBRDIABEEIS D ERESITERE
ZEZ(RMF23) - R -_ZT—MWF
+— At HBEERERER &2
ESECEARBRHDRBR LGE
ARG WM EARKI1.25T
(F8ZE R 4914.22% ) * 30,000,000
BETELEARBRODIY L EEE
AR #337,500,0007T (8 & 7 49
427,877,000/ 7C) °

FHEREFELFRN T —NF+=A
=t HZAREBERESIELEAR
RO EBBLER ST 2 W EEH
& B R ER 268,896,000
T WEBEREZSTZAABRKE
W RMFE11(D)) °



Notes to the

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

financial statements

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

20 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 20 EHIRE
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—2-NmE —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T THTT
Investments in debt securities: BREHFIEE
— With original maturity more than three —RE|HIHZ R =1 H
months 535,958 =
— With original maturity within three —RIHHAAE=BEAR
months (see Note 24) (2K at24) 50,703 -
586,661 —

The debt securities represent wealth management
products issued by financial institutions with guaranteed
principal amounts and fixed or variable returns, and are
recognised in accordance with the accounting policies set

out in Notes 2(g) and 2(n).

BB RA I MREET 2 RE
¢ REESA RERZ RS ER
RIEE2(g) K 2(n) Pt & & TR T LA
-

21 INVENTORIES 21 FE
The Group
REE
2014 2013
= LS e

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THTT
Merchandises e 120,158 119,986
Low value consumables KESFEmR 6,125 6,231
126,283 126,217
S TEEEERABRAR T OFEFIR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

21 INVENTORIES (continued)

An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss is as follows:

(BRIF=BEH -

LRILETZS)

21 BE (

ﬁ%,ﬁ%ﬂEZIEIJ)\ FEERRZES
DT

The Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-F —=E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FETT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EERFSREE 659,959 646,997
22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22 FEURBR TR & H4th A8 WL X
The Group The Company
AEH VNN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=—F ZF-—MNF —_T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T THTT FH&T FHTT
Trade receivables from third  JEE = HBEZ
parties (see Note 22(a)) (EHft22) 69,318 . 49,812 . . -
Amounts due from related JE W 8 3 A T FUB
parties (see Note 22(c)) (EHfaz22(c)) gaaIsgms 2,807 = N i
Amounts due from subsidiaries J& U7 £ & A fff
of the Group (see Note B A RFIE
22(d)) (B K zE22(d)) - — - 2,555,947
Less: allowance for doubtful B R AR
debts (see Note 22(b)) (R #iat22(b)) - - = (20,820)
= = - 2,535,127
Prepayments, deposits and BRFIE - ke RE A
other receivables: FEUT N -
— Value added tax refundable —m[REEEF 131,948 110,697 - -
— Receivables from third —EWE=HFE
parties (see Note 22(e)) (ﬁ/fﬁifzz(e)) 547,811 114,109 = -
— Refundable deposit paid —BN—%F=H
to a third party (see Note ZARERSE
22(f)) ( E/)’ﬁ&*zz(f)) - 319,257 = =
— Prepayments and deposits —KEHRE BN
for operating leases HERES 5,552 12,489 - =
— Others —HA 37,747 31,958 20,332 1,353
_ 723,058 588 51(_) _____ 20,332 L 1,35_3_“
805,535 641,129 20,332 2,536,480
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZBIEHE - &AL ETZEZ)

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
Except for deposits of HK$3,945,000 (2013:
HK$3,791,000), all of the trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

Details of the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note
30(a).

(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade

receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
with the following ageing analysis (based on the

22 EUWERF R H fih B UK
(#&)
BR1%Z£3,945,0008 L (ZE— =4 :
3,791,0007% 7T ) 41+ BT A FE W BR X &%
Hh e WK TR B A R — G Uk [B] o T

AEEBEZEEREFBHN W=
30(a) °

(a) FRERDHT
AT HE MR BR R R Al WK 2
FEU IR X (BB REREBE) R
HERRZ BRI (HERE

invoice date) as of the end of the reporting period: )
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Less than 1 month LR —1{EA 36,708 44,252
More than 1 month but less than 3 — @A EEIR=(EA
months 13,517 5,204
More than 3 months =AM E 19,093 356
69,318 49,812

Trade receivables that were not impaired relate to
credit card centres owned by financial institutions
and tenants operating in the Group’s department
stores, shopping mall and supermarkets for whom
there were no recent history of default and have
a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

b Rl B <2 AT R ok B g A 5 A4
BREEZEARPOLERNAEH
BE®RS BYTHLRBETS
REZHPBR MxSHER
TP I AT HIE # RO ek BB AR S
BB Rif 2 EERE - RIFBE
K EEEMEERR%ZERE
SRIERERE REAREEER
I B B K B N R R R R AT &
G QEIERN e T 3 o
FrAEMAE MR-

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and other
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade and other
receivables directly (see Note 2(I)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year are as follows:

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

22 FEURBRFR K H fth FE WK

(%)

(b)

FEE a2 B ok B L At BB WK 2 R
IR W AR R % At P WK 2 R LS
BERABERLE  FRIEAKHE
RRSBRARIBZ A WEES Y
ST OREE R R E &N E KRR
Ko EL A R W R 88 (B A 2(1)
(i)) °

Rz RERERBHOT

The Group The Company
rEE AAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE = ZE-OF —T—=
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET FERT FAT
At 1 January R—H—H - 3,518 20,820 20,820
Exchange adjustments b 7, 5 = 62 _ _
Reclassification (see Note =195 ( B Hf T
22(d)) 22(d)) - - (20,820) -
Uncollectible amounts FAEERE
written off during the & REMSH
year - (3,580) - =
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H = = = 20,820
Amounts due from related parties () BEREBAEALRIE

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Amounts due from subsidiaries of the Group

The amounts due from subsidiaries of the Group are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

In 2014, the management of the Group consider
all of the amounts due from subsidiaries of the
Group at 31 December 2014 are the Group’s long-
term interests in these subsidiaries, and accordingly,
these amounts have been reclassified as non-
current receivables and included in “Interests in
subsidiaries” in Note 17.
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(d)

JEUBAE A T FIEAEIER R
B e A 48 ] E A8 KA

FE W A< 5= 8 1 B R 2 R RROR
FEW AR B A B AR IR R E
A BRI B E &K

R-T—NF AEEEEER
RR_FE—OF+-_H=+—~H
2 AP AR S BB QR 2 A
HRARERZSHBAR 2K
Hfgm At ZFSHRCEHN
DRRIEME IR - S HA
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Zzggﬁﬁ&EMEW%

(e) Receivables from third parties

Included in the balance are receivables of
HK$500,971,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$51,922,000) due from a third party which
provides services in managing the Group’s customer
loyalty programme, and the sale and usage of
customers’ prepaid cards within the Group’s
department stores, shopping mall and supermarkets
(hereinafter referred to as the “Prepaid Card
Management Company”).

(f) Refundable deposit paid to a third party

The amount at 31 December 2013 represented a
refundable deposit paid by the Group to a third
party for an exclusive right for the Group to enter
into negotiation on the Group’s intention to
acquire certain properties from this third party. On
4 December 2014, an acquisition agreement was
entered into between the Group and this third party
in connection with the acquisition of the above
properties, and the deposit as at 31 December 2013
was treated as partial payments for the acquisition
of commercial properties (see Note 18(i)).

23 LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A RELATED

PARTY

Loan receivable represented a loan granted to Ginwa
Investments, a related party of the Group, and was part
of the assets acquired in the Group’s acquisition of Ginwa
Bell Tower in 2008. Immediately before the events took
place as described below, the principal balance of the
loan was RMB758,524,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$964,798,000) and bore interest at a rate of 10.00%
per annum (the “Ginwa Loan").

On 30 July 2014, the Company, Ginwa Bell Tower, Ginwa
Investments and Maritime Century Limited (“MCL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ginwa Investments and
also the immediate holding company of the Company,
entered into a supplemental agreement, which was
subsequently approved by the independent equity
shareholders of the Company in a special general
meeting held on 28 October 2014, whereby (i)
RMB315,600,000 of the Ginwa Loan will be settled by
the transfer of 30,000,000 shares in Ginwa Enterprise
(i.e. the Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares as mentioned in Note
19) owned by Ginwa Investments to Ginwa Bell Tower
at RMB10.52 per share (equivalent to approximately
HK$13.23 per share); and (i) the remaining balance of
the Ginwa Loan will be settled by cash within a 180-day
period after the approval of the supplemental agreement.

(e) EWE=FFE

R-_F—NF+=—A=+—8"
JE Uk % = 75 5K 7E500,971,000/%8
T(ZZT—=4:51,922,000/
TLERTA&R  ZE=F (T
BREAFEMNREEQR]) AKX
SEMNERFEHRES REE
&35 B O KBRS N
;%&f%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%f#ﬁﬁﬁ&
£ o

f) SR—BE=ZFZAEREBRS
RZZE—=F+=-A=+—HB2
SHIEAEBER—RE=X
Nz&e HTARAEBHRAS
EmEzE A WEETYE
METERZBREF - N =F
—NE+ BB NEEEZ
F=F U LT LU R
M#E HEERZE—=F+=
A=+—AREKRBEEEME
B3R (R HIEE18(3) ) °

23 EREBEALER

ERERERTFEIERE (KEB 2
EAT)ZER AREBE_ZTZ
NFhBEIEEBEMBBEEZ — 30
DoBBETMEHEARN BERZA
L&A AR 758,524,000t (48
Z£ A 49964,798,000% 7T ) » I 12 K|
£10.00%:T 8 ([FEERK]) °

R-_ZEZE—MmMELA=+H XA
A& EEE & KR E KMaritime
Century Limited ([MCL]) (A&£TE
REZZEMBARARARARAZH
BERAR)I Mot &\
ARBZEIYIBERNR -_Z—WE+ A
“+NBE1TZRERERIASHE
2t ()e Tt E R A R ¥315,600,000
T B BIE SR AR E10.527T (F85%
REFA13.23870) 2 EBREZSE
WEWER T 5.,230,000,000 JA%
5 (B sE19FT it 2 & 7€ 1b AR AR
PES: K(i) &EERGEEGAIL
ﬁ‘ﬁ}ﬁm%%so%ﬁ%ﬁWIE&M%?

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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23 LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A RELATED
PARTY (continued)

The transfer of the Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares was
completed on 24 November 2014. The difference
of RMB21,900,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,647,000), representing the difference
between the initial recognised value of the Ginwa
Enterprise A-Shares of RMB337,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$427,877,000) upon the completion of
the transfer and the carrying amount of the Ginwa Loan
settled, was recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

The remaining balance, including the principal
amount and accrued interests, of the Ginwa Loan
of RMB519,089,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$655,288,000) was fully settled by cash in 2014.

24 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

23 BEWBAEALER(F)

HZSECEARBRHLER-Z
—OFE+—A-+tHABATK =
%8 A R #21,900,0007T (MER L
27,647,000 7T) (BDARA 8 & T X
BEIELEARK LD 2V HERE
8 A E#337,500,0007T (#ZE R4
427,877,000 7T ) RE BN ESIEERK
FRHEEZZ8)ECRBE_T—NF
T+ A=+ BLEEEBSZANRE

=
A °

SEERZHTE (BREAE RESF
B) AR#519,089,0007T (HBE R4
655,288,000/8 7T ) E R —ZF —PF A
HEER-

24 BRITHEERFERE

The Group The Company
AEE ¥ NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NEFE —FT=F ZB-NF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT FHET THT
Cash at bank and on hand in #& BB REREB T
the consolidated statement  $R774577 & FoaIH
of financial position & 357,673 266,177 2,576 415
Add: short-term investments 0 : REIHIH & =1
with original maturity within A AR 2 5 HHIK &
three months (see Note 20)  ( B H{720) 50,703 =
Less: restricted cash at bank 3 : $RITXRIR S
(see Note (i) (RHaE@)) (142,995)  (57,950)
Cash and cash equivalents in 48R REXRZ
the consolidated cash flow RehBeEE
statement T8 H 265,381 208,227
Note: Bt ez -

(i)  Restricted cash at bank at 31 December 2014 mainly
represented bank deposits of HK$123,981,000 (2013:
HK$57,950,000) pledged to secure the Group's bank
loans (see Notes 26(a)(i) and 26(b)).
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() RZE—mOEF+-A=+—Hz#R
TXREEZHRBITEREER
LA AN [E123,981,00058 7T (=&
— =% :57,950,000/# 7T ) 2 $RITE
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24 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)

The Group’s operations of department stores, shopping
mall and supermarkets in the PRC are conducted in
RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the
remittance of RMB out of the PRC is subject to the
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control

25

Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

promulgated by the PRC government.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

24 ROBERFERE (4)
AEERTBRZEERES BYTH O
KRBEMSEERBETIAAREE
T ARBRIFERLHREE BB
o B O fH A B B R 7R 2 R B BT AR
o B B BE SN E B I 5 Bl K2 58 Bl B AR
BR °

25 BRI H ALK

The Group The Company
rEE RAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NOF —FT—=—F ZFB-—0NF —FT—=
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT AT FET F&T
Trade payables arising from:  EMBEREA T
FIREAE:
— Concession sales — B EE
5 & 840,035 834,957 - -
— Purchase of inventories -BERFE 84,651 62,782 — =
924,686 897,739 - =
Amounts due to related P R8E A T FUR
parties (see Note (i) (L HtaEi)) 18,595 4,278 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEfT AN £ E [T E A A
of the Group (see Note (i) BB (R HEEG)) - = 219,165 78,535
Other payables and accrued  H i i vt 3 & JE 51
expenses: 2R
— Payables for staff related —-ERzBT
costs HEER 60,995 62,789 - 4,020
— Payables for miscellaneous — — fE{ 5 Fi
taxes 27,682 16,906 - =
— Payables for interest —ENNEERN
expenses and transaction BEZRXHK
costs on borrowings i 27,590 39,688 3,294 6,105
- Payables for handling —ENFENMRER
charges to the Prepaid NAElZ B’
Card Management & M
Company 46,011 31,067 - =
— Accrued expenses for —KEHREZ
operating leases FERT R 116,957 90,224 < 398
— Deposits from —FARERRE
concessionaries and 1=k
customers 50,301 44,794 - =
— Dividends payables - E 7,011 5,533 - -
— Others —Hfih 85,969 69,876 2,803 24,735
422,516 360,877 6,097 35,258
Financial liabilities measured AR A E 2 S
at amortised cost MEE 1,365,797 1,262,894 225,262 113,793
Derivative financial TESMITA
instruments (see Note (ii)) ( 2 Hazi)) 22,164 24,986 22,164 24,986
Deferred income EEUTA 34,612 19,969 = -
Receipts in advance AU KIE 130,449 205,099 - -
1,553,022 1,512,948 247,426 138,779
HESTEHEERERAT T —NFEFR

143



144

Notes to the financial statements

Bt 7% ¥ 3R MY A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised as revenue or net income or
in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on
demand.

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

On 5 September 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a loan agreement with a financial institution in the
draw-down of United States dollar (“USD") 30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$232,692,000). Pursuant
to the loan agreement, the Company issued 66,114,000
warrants to this financial institution on the same day. Each
warrant entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company, where a maximum of 66,114,000
ordinary shares in the Company can be subscribed during
the period from 5 September 2013 to 4 March 2016.
The initial exercise price of each warrant to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company is HK$2.2874,
where adjustments will be made against the exercise price
on the first and second anniversaries of the warrants
issuance date, if on each of these dates the prevailing
exercise price is higher than the prevailing market price of
the Company’s ordinary share as defined in the warrant
instrument. On the first anniversary of the warrants
issuance date, i.e. 5 September 2014, the exercise price
of the warrant was adjusted to HK$1.6012 per warrant.
In addition, on the maturity date or under certain
conditions as set out in the warrant instrument, the
holder of the warrant can require the Company to redeem
any unexercised warrants at a price of USD0.03554467
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.276) each (i.e., the
redemption option).

The warrants and the redemption option are classified
as derivative financial instruments and have been dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(f). The remeasurement of the derivative financial
instruments to fair value at 31 December 2014 resulted in
HK$2,822,000 (2013: HK$8,752,000) being recognised in
profit or loss. No warrants have been exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Ageing analysis

26

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)
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Included in trade and other payables are trade payables
with the following ageing analysis (based on the maturity

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

FEAS BR AR R Lt FE A 3K ()

BRiR 2

ST B A BR R B EL A B 5 R 2 B A B
RN ME R RO (RFHE)

date) as of the end of the reporting period: (N
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-NFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Due within one month or on demand R—{E A REIH=k
1R B RAF ZAS 924,686 897,739
BANK LOANS 26 SRITER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank loans are (a) XEEZEBRTERS TN
analysed as follows: > -
The Group The Company
FEE KAFE
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-NF —_T-—=F ZZ-—0F _T—=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THER FHET THER FAT
Secured by bank deposits  LASR{TTERER
and guaranteed by a B UHAEEZ
subsidiary of the Group MEBARIER (R
(see Note (i) HtE (i) 62,675 - 62,675 -
Guaranteed by HAKEZIMBR
subsidiaries of the AIRARE—%
Group and a director EEER
of the Company 253,518 - - =
Guaranteed by the BARA R ER
Company 86,951 25,439 - -
Guaranteed by a subsidiary BZAEEZ FEAQ
of the Group AR - 76,316 - -
403,144 101,755 62,675 =
Add: il
Current portion of REBITERZH
long-term bank loans HE8 M ( 2 Bfat
(see Note 26(b)) 26(b)) 355,388 148,064 - -
Non-current portion of BREREEZR
long-term bank loans HIRITER 2
repayable on demand BUERER (R ( B HaF
(see Notes (i) and 26(b))  (ii)}26(b)) 686,549 185,163 - -
1,445,081 434,982 62,675 =
HRSTEEELERERAT T —OFFR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

26 BANK LOANS (continued)

(@) The Group’s short-term bank loans are
analysed as follows: (continued)

Notes:

(i) At 31 December 2014, the bank loan was secured
by the Group’s cash at bank of HK$63,843,000 (see
Note 24(i)).

(i) Certain of the Group's long-term bank loans
with principal amounts of HK$700,000,000 and
UsD40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$310,225,000) (2013: USD40,000,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$306,701,000)
contain clauses which give the lenders unconditional
rights to demand immediate repayment of
the loans at any time. At 31 December 2014,
the aggregate carrying value of the loans was
HK$871,747,000 (2013: HK$306,701,000), of
which HK$185,198,000 (2013: HK$121,538,000) is
repayable within one year.

(iii) At 31 December 2014, the Group's banking facilities
amounted to HK$633,794,000 (2013: HK$Nil) were
utilised to the extent of HK$86,951,000 (2013:
HK$Nil).
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(a) AEBZEHBITERI W
T: (&)
K et
i) H-FE—WmFE+-_A=+-—
B RITEREHAERZE
17 #57%63,843,0007% 7T ( B K
FE24(i) ) {EHEH -

i) "EBHTAELEAE
700,000,0005% T, }240,000,000
7T (185 1£49310,225,00078
7t) (—Z—=4%:40,000,000
Z 70 % MK 4306,701,000
BIL) 2 REIRITEREE K
o TERABEZERY
BNERZ BIRHEREFR - K=
T—WE+-_A=+—H"
B R4 W E A£871,747,0007%8
ot (==& — =4 : 306,701,000
Bor)  EH185,198,000/% JT
(==& —=%:121,538,000/&
JL) AR —FREE-
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

26 BANK LOANS (continued) 26 MITER (4)
(b) The Group'’s long-term bank loans are (b) XEBZRHRITERS AW
analysed as follows: R
The Group
rEM

2014 2013
—E2-mFE  —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET

Secured by the Group’s investment NEAEBZEEMER

property and/or bank deposits HERITIF RMEE R 500,698 171,623
Secured by the Group’s fixed assets UAREBRZBEREE K

and/or bank deposits, and guaranteed Sk $RITIERVEER - A

by the Company and/or subsidiaries BARE R AEE

of the Group Z KB A RER 1,486,541 1,514,659
1,987,239 1,686,282
Less: W
Current portion of long-term bank REVRITE R BIEAER 5
loans (see Note 26(a)) (R Htzt26(a)) (355,388) (148,064)
Non-current portion of long-term AR ZREE 2 RER
bank loans repayable on demand TERZ IERNEER 0
(see Note 26(a)) (R Hizt26(a)) (686,549) (185,163)
945,302 1,353,055

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

26 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans are
analysed as follows: (continued)
The following assets and their respective carrying

values as at the end of the reporting period are
pledged to secure the Group’s long-term bank

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

26 RITEM (4)

(b) AEEzRBBITERD MM
T: (&)
MIEERESBZEREERAE
HEMREWERAESAEE
ZRESRITERZER:

loans:
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—F-mEFE 2=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Leasehold land and buildings HETHREF
(see Note 13(a)) (R HiaE13(a)) 1,251,109 1,214,704
Investment property (see Note 14) WEWE (AT 14) 1,471,718 1,264,622
Cash at bank (see Note 24(i)) IRITRETE (R HTaE240)) 60,138 57,950
2,782,965 2,537,276

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as

AREE 2 RERITEREAR TS

follows: EAEE:
The Group
REH

2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Within 1 year —F R 355,388 148,064
After 1 year but within 2 years —FHEMRFR 290,258 407,858
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZEBERFEAN 814,417 518,795
After 5 years HF#E 527,176 611,565
1,987,239 1,686,282

All of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans,
including the non-current portion of the bank loans
repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost.
None of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans
is expected to be settled within one year, except
for RMB805,744,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,024,859,000) of the non-current portion at
31 December 2013 which had been repaid in 2014.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

FraFERNEEt BERTTER (B
HRESKIFER 2 IRTT B FKIERD
BREB 10 ) P9 TR B SH A AR AR o BR
RZEBE—=F+_A=+—HA
R #805,744,0007C (HHE R4
1,024,859,0007% Jr ) 2 FE Bl &8
HBHER_ZE—FEEIN
EIERNEET BIRTTERTBHBR
—FREE -



Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

26 BANK LOANS (continued)

(c) Certain of the Group's bank loans are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions.
If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
loans would become repayable on demand. In
addition, as disclosed in Note 26(a)(ii), certain of the
Group’s long-term bank loan agreements contain
clauses which give the lenders the right at their
sole discretion to demand immediate repayment
at any time irrespective of whether the Group has
complied with the covenants and met the scheduled
repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants, is up to date with the scheduled
repayments of the long-term bank loans and does
not consider it probable that the banks will exercise
their discretion to demand repayment for so long as
the Group continues to meet these requirements.
Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in Note 30(b). At 31
December 2014, none of the covenants relating to
the bank loans had been breached (2013: Nil).

27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 November 2001, whereby the directors of
the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees and service providers of the Group, including
directors of any company in the Group, to take up share
options at HK$1 to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company. The share options granted in 2010 do not have
a vesting condition and are exercisable within a period of
five years. Each share option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company at
HK$1.26 each, and is settled gross in shares.

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

26 MITER (&

(o)

AEBETROTERERICES
BEB2ERLHPZERZ
FoMAEBERTLE BEXH
SRR ESREE - o a0F
F26Q@)INFTHEE  AEBE TR
HIRTERBZABGRE TE
RABER 2 ERIBFERZAVER
M (THASEEREEEST
RHERBITIRETEIERER) o

AEETHEREBTZELHZ
1R THREMRITERZERE
BRER URAEREAREEE
BRRERENR BITTERS
HERBRZAIGEMER TR B
EAKETERSES AR E
— S HBEN M E30(b) e A =
E-mME+=-A=1+—8 HE
HIFTERERZZABREER
TE—=fF )

27 BEREEEUROXNTZRS

ZIN/N

Al

— B BN =T

T—F+—ARNBERM BHARA]
EREERTHBEAFASEREE R
RBEHEE (BRAKEEMEAR
AlZER)RIBTEATRBEARAF
TaAREh2BRE R_F—FF
BB EFBREAATRNE
FHATAITE - BPBEER T
BARAER1. 268 TTRE —BRAR
AIEERRD  XARD2EEE Z
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 15 February 2011, whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees and service providers of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take
up share options at HK$1 to subscribe for ordinary shares
in the Company. For the share options granted in 2011,
6,975,000 share options will vest immediately from the
date of grant, and for the remaining 37,050,000 share
options, 50% will vest after one year from the date of
grant, another 30% will vest after two years from the
date of grant, and the remaining 20% will vest after
three years from the date of grant. The share options
granted in 2011 will lapse on 20 October 2017. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company at HK$1.96 each, and
is settled gross in shares.

On 28 May 2013, 67,105,000 share options were
granted to directors of the Company and employees of
the Group under the above share option scheme. Of the
share options granted, 33,552,500 share options will
vest one year from the date of grant, 20,131,500 share
options will vest two years from the date of grant, and
13,421,000 share options will vest three years from the
date of grant. The share options granted will lapse on 28
May 2019. Each share option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company at
HK$1.73 each, and is settled gross in shares.

On 30 May 2013, in order to comply with the Listing
Rules, 4,750,000 of the share options granted to
certain directors of the Company on 28 May 2013 were
cancelled, and the Company has replaced them with the
granting of 2,300,000 share options to these directors.
Of the share options granted, 1,150,000 share options
will vest one year from the date of grant, 690,000 share
options will vest two years from the date of grant, and
460,000 share options will vest three years from the
date of grant. The share options granted will lapse on 30
May 2019. Each share option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company at
HK$1.76 each, and is settled gross in shares.
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27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the share

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

27 BREGEURO T ZX

Z (&)

(a) EBRLBEREZRRE R

options granted are as follows: T
Contractual
Number of life of share
instruments Vesting conditions options
BkRE
IAE®E 5B SR
Share options granted to
directors:
RTESZBERE:
—on 20 October 2010 2,325,000 No vesting condition 5 years
-RZZE—ZE+H=TH I 5 55 B {1 hE
—on 20 October 2011 5,312,500 One year from the date of grant 6 years
—-RZE——F+HA=-+H BRHBHE—F NE
—on 20 October 2011 3,187,500 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——F+H_-+H Bt AR F NE
—on 20 October 2011 2,125,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——%THZTH BRHBHE=%F N
—on 28 May 2013 5,250,000 One year from the date of grant 6 years
——_E-—=FAAZ=tNH BREHSE—F NE
—on 28 May 2013 3,150,000 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
——_ZE-—=FRAZ-+tN\H BRE AR _F NE
—on 28 May 2013 2,100,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
——E—=FRA=-+N\H BRHBHE=%F NE
—on 30 May 2013 1,150,000 One year from the date of grant 6 years
——T—=FfAH=1H B AR —F NE
—on 30 May 2013 690,000 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
——_T—=FfAHA=T1H B AR _F NE
—on 30 May 2013 460,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
——E—Z=FRA=+H BREBHE=%F NE
HRSEIEERERAT —Z—HFEFR
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27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27 ZBRREEEURG T ZRS
TRANSACTIONS (continued) (&)

(a) The terms and conditions of the share (a) EREBREZGRRGHN

options granted are as follows: (continued) T:(%&)

Contractual

Number of life of share

instruments Vesting conditions options

B AR R

TEHEH BB %Y aHH

Share options granted to

employees:

RTREZBRE:

—on 20 October 2010 8,675,000 No vesting condition 5 years
—-RZFE-—ZFFTHA_-+H A 45 57 B A5k 1 hE
—on 20 October 2011 6,975,000 No vesting condition 6 years
—-R-ZF——F+H_-+H 7 5 55 B A5 1 NE
—on 20 October 2011 13,212,500 One year from the date of grant 6 years
—-RZZE——F+H=-+H B AR —F NEF
—on 20 October 2011 7,927,500 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
—R=ZF——F+THA_-+H BRE AR _F NE
—on 20 October 2011 5,285,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
—R=ZF——+H=-+H BRE AR =F NE
—on 28 May 2013 25,927,500 One year from the date of grant 6 years
——E—=FRA=-+t)N\R B AR —F N
—on 28 May 2013 15,556,500 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
——ZE—=FARA=+N\R BRE AR _F NE
—on 28 May 2013 10,371,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
——FE-—=FRAAZ+tNH BRE AR =F NE
Total share options granted 119,680,000

BERLzBRERH
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise
price of share options are as follows:

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

27 BEREEEURODX AT ZXRE

(b) BREZHBE RMEFIFTE

(&)
BEmT:
2014
—E-mF
Weighted
average Number
exercise of share
price options
mE¥H
TEE BREXE
HK$
BT

2013
—T-=F
Weighted
average Number
exercise of share
price options
g 19
TRE BREZHA
HK$
BT

Outstanding at the beginning of the £ #J] i 2R 1T (&£

year
Granted during the year FARERE
Cancelled during the year FANEEH
Forfeited during the year FAERK

Outstanding at the end of the year & 2K [ R 1T {E

Exercisable at the end of the year K A] T 17 {F

No share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2014
had a weighted average exercise price of HK$1.775
(2013: HK$1.776) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 3.5 years (2013: 4.5 years).

1.776 115,855,000

1.806  (4,300,000)

1.775 111,555,000

1.790 80,477,500

1.832 51,200,000
1.731 69,405,000
1.730  (4,750,000)

1.776 115,855,000

1.812 44,225,000

REBZE T — NF SN
B -HEERECETE(ZS—=F:

&) -

R-ZE—ME+-_A=t—BHKR{TESE
AR 4E 2 InEFHTEER1.7758 T (ZF
—=F 17768 L) RMEFHBTELH
FHAISE(ZBE—=F:45%F) -

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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28 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Movements in current taxation in the

Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

28 MBRRRAZMER

(a) HEMBRRRAZEHHIE

consolidated statement of financial position B
are as follows:
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAB T
Balance of income tax payable at R—A—BEMER
1 January R 81,753 60,314
Exchange adjustments (ERTIEEE (237) 2,176
Provision for income tax on the TARFEE (AT R
estimated taxable profits for the year & %] > Fr 15 B ¢ &5
(see Note 7(a)) (RHtiE7(a)) 64,217 72,170
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFERETR
prior years (see Note 7(a)) (B EE)
(RHKiat7(a)) 2,378 (14,498)
Income tax paid during the year FRNEMNAER (56,217) (38,409)
Balance of income tax payable at Rt+-—A=+—HEH
31 December PRS0 45 8 91,894 81,753
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28 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 28 HIBARRRAZFEB (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEBEEERERE:
(i) The Group (i) F&H
Assets Liabilities
EE af
Fair value
adjustments
on fixed
assets,
Depreciation Fair value investment
expenses Accrued  adjustments property and
inexcess of  expenses on available- intangible
the related and for-sale assets and
Unused ~ depreciation deferred equity related
Deferred tax arising from: tax losses  allowances income  securities Total ~ depreciation Net
BEgE
RENER
At E EVEEL
IR 3 ABR NEMXEY EAFRR BEEHZ MfERR
BEHE: HEER BEAERE EEUA AAERE At HRBFE BE

HKSO00  HKFOOO  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS000 K000 HKS'000
Ter  Tén  Thr Tz TEm S TEE O STAT

At 1 January 2013 R-F-=F
—R—-H 16,537 11,920 20,481 - 48,938 (392,390) (343,452)
Frchange adjustments L 325 365 675 = 1,365 (9,152) (7.787)

(Charged)icredited to the (318 /3T A
consolidated statement of ~ EABREE

orofit or loss (see Note 73) (£ Hz27(3)) (12827) (501) 2302 - (11006) (47,008 (58,034
Charged to reserves nagkE
(see Note 11(3) (EH11) = = g i z (64730) (64736)

At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+_F
==k 4035 11,784 23458 - 39277 (513,286) (474,009)

Exchange adjustments BB 21) (69) (166) - (256) 1,183 97
Charged to the consolidated B 54 BER
statement of profitor loss (£ 7))

(see Note 7(3) (2,029) (6974  (20827) - (29830)  (3834)  (681%4)
Credited/(charged) to reserves FE/&EF A/
(see Note 11(3)) (%)

(ZH11) - - - 10,334 10334 (16614 (116,280)
A 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A

=t-A 1,985 4,741 2,465 10,334 1955  (677,041)  (657,516)
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28

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(ii) The Company

There were no significant deferred tax assets
and liabilities at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(u), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses
of HK$239,177,000 (2013: HK$123,885,000) as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in
the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2014, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of certain
subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC amounted to HK$2,244,420,000 (2013:
HK$1,630,130,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
HK$112,221,000 (2013: HK$81,506,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it has been determined that
it is probable that profits from these subsidiaries will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and
the end of the reporting period are set out below:
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(b)

(c)

(d)

CRIELEHELEERAE:

(&)

(i) *AH
R-B-MER-F—=
F+-A=+—AAKE
REEBAAERAE-

AERZELERIBEEE

BB E2(u)FT 8 2 S 5T EUR -
AEBWAERBEAREAHR
75 E518239,177,0008 ¢ (==&
— =% :123,885,000/8 7T ) 2 ik
ERIEEE RERESBHG
AERER R E BB T AR ge 2
SRR IERT & A LAY BB 18 o

ABERZELEBIEAE
R-E—WNF+-_A=+—8"
B AR EBE TR B2 KB
RRIZAD G BB EEE
£ 52,244,420,0008 T (=&
—=%:1,630,130,000/8 7T ) °
IEIEFETE B 1E112,221,00078 7T

—F—=4:81,506,0005 7T )
MR ABIRZERE B2 DK
R 2 BB M T AER - RE
BARNRIESIZET BB AR
ZREBRMEEERBZEN
BRRZEFTARAIBERAITER
R F AP K ©

29 EXFR -HERRE

(a)
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(a) Movements in components of equity

29 BEX-RERKRE (8)

(a) BWEIOEE (&)

(continued)
The Company AN
Retained
profits/
Share Share Capital Contributed (accumulated
capital  premium reserve surplus |osses) Total
REEN/
R&  ROEE EARE  BARR (RIEER) @zt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
THL TATL TAT TATL TATL TAT
(Note (Note (Note (Note
29¢)  29@N)  29()i) - 29(a)i)
(W#290)  (Wat29e)  (W#29d)  (Ki290)
() (i) (ii))
Balance at 1 January 2013 R=B-=%-f-A2
ge 231474 1,382,735 64,535 1,224,868 66,405 2,970,017
Changes in equity for 2013: “E-CHEEREE:
Total comprehensive income for the  FRZANHELE
year - - - - 6,992 6,992
Ordinary shares issued on the BRTEREER
conversion of convertible notes BTLER 4,406 73,883 - - - 78,289
Purchase of own shares BABSRH
- par value -BEfE/ (6,057) - - - - (6,057)
~ premium paid -BfRE - (113,070) - - - (113,070)
Equity-settled share-based transactions k#2428 Sk (5
(see Note 27) T2 5 (EH#27) - - 25,644 = = 25,644
Effect on equity arising from the BORERZER
redemption of the convertible HREREE FE
notes - - (17,511) - 17,511 -
Dividends approved in respect of the B E—FEZ
previous year (see Note 29(b)fi)) EftEZRE
(ZHa290b)i)) i - - - @ @)
Balance at 31 December 2013 and R=E-=F+-f=+-H
1 January 2014 k=%-WmE-5-A
R 229,823 1,343,548 72,668 1,224,868 63,131 2,934,038
Changes in equity for 2014; “2-MEREREE:
Total comprehensive income for the  FRZEMHEE
year - - - - (254914)  (254914)
Equity-settled share-based transactions 1RARHEL BB % ff 2
(see Note 27) X5 (ZH#27) - - 20316 = - 20316
Dividends approved in respect of the 3t E—EEE it EZRE
previous year (see Note 29(b)i) (B BTa290b)i)) - - - - (29877)  (29,877)
Balance at 31 December 2014 ~ W=F-MET-A=1-A
A3 229,823 1,343,548 92,984 1224868  (221,660) 2,669,563
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Z£5)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 BEX - -HERRKRE (4)
(continued)
(b) Dividends (b) BE
() Dividends payable to equity (i) XRARERABRRESL
shareholders of the Company and RIEFEAELFRNEMNEK
holder of the convertible preference B
shares attributable to the year
2014 2013
—E-lmEF T =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FABTT
Final dividend proposed after the MIHERRERFESTIRKZ
end of the reporting period BT REREITIRERE
of HK$Nil per ordinary and ERREDIRR BT H
convertible preference share T (ZZE—=%4:0.013
(2013: HK$0.013) BIT) - 29,877

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company and
holder of the convertible preference

(i) ZARABERRREATLRKRESL
RIEBABILFASH#E
K&tz t—EMBFE

shares attributable to the previous FETERE
financial year, approved during the year
2014 2013
—E-F —E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Final dividend in respect of the FABHERSZN 2 E—
previous financial year, approved BB FE 2 BT @K
during the year, of HK$0.013 K2 AT #2 IR A2 5 AR R HA AR
per ordinary and convertible B0.0138 L (ZE—=
preference share (2013: &:0.01287T)
HK$0.012) 29,877 27,777
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX - -RERRE (&
(continued)
(c) Share capital () BX
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREBITRE
2014 2013
“E-F “T—=F
Number Number
of shares of shares
BB EE ffn &1 B
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR THERT Tz TAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 FREE0.10ETT
each 2T 15,000,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 1,500,000

Preference shares of HK$0.10 B EEO0.108 T
each 2B 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000

Ordinary shares, issued and EZTRAR

fully paid: EER:
At 1 January R—A—AH 1,121,165 112,116 1,137,676 113,767
Shares issued on the conversion 53 A # % 2 2 5

of convertible notes BITRAD = = 44,063 4,406
Shares repurchased EA ) = = (60,574) (6,057)
At 31 December Eé+:ﬂ5+*a_ 1,121,165 112,116 1,121,165 112,116
Convertible preference ERTREZ AR

shares, issued and fully BELR:

paid:
At 1 January and 31 December W—A—BE+=

A=+—H ) 1,177,068 117,707 1,177,068 117,707

Total share capital IR A B2 2,298,233 229,823 2,298,233 229,823
Ordinary shares B AR
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled LB A AR R WECT
to receive dividends as declared from time to KHERZIKRERBERAK
time and are entitled to one vote per share at RAIRELEEBRE—F-
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares FTBEEERNARRZH
rank equally with regard to the Company’s BREEFAHEBR S
residual assets. fi
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(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Authorised and issued share capital
(continued)

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares do not carry the
right to vote. The holder of the convertible
preference shares has the right, at any time
and at the sole option of such holder, to
convert the convertible preference shares in
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible
preference shares ranks pari passu with other
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of
the Company. In the event of any liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company,
holder of the convertible preference shares
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per
convertible preference share, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends in preference to the
ordinary shareholders.

29 EX-RERKE (&)

() B&E(#)
(i) ZEREBRITRE
(%)
A 2 B A8 SE AR

AHMREERTHERE
BoRMRBEBRITAEA
BRI B A S R 5% 15
BAZBREEERERAR
P 48 5 A 2 P =k AE ) BF 10
BRAOKRRBIZEHRE
38 PR o 5 4 R 51 R R 8 A
BAERERIARE @R
ABREERFA ARR
fE AR BEAEERES
BARR B BB E A D K
77 EE B R FH AL fid AR
NCIVEL: SO Gl
BMERBEEBRBAEARRE
BRREREBENREESE
Rl 10 4% 55 A3 A 42 A8 5 R
1.60/87T * hI_LFrE FERTHE
AR B Z KR -

(i) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (ii) R EER 5K Z B R i
options at the end of the reporting period RITEBIREZ K5
2014 2013
—E-NFE —FT—=F
Exercise period Exercise price Number Number
1T TEE 4= Eogs
‘000 ‘000
5 T
20 October 2010to —ZE—ZFEF+HA=-+HZ HK$1.26
19 October 2015 —E—hF+H+NB 1.26/87C 9,225 9,350
20 October 2011 to —ZE——F+A=-+HZ HK$1.96
19 October 2017 —E—+F+H+NB 1.96/8 7T 40,175 41,850
28 May 2013 to —ZT—=fRA-t+N\BE HK$1.73
27 May 2019 —T-hFRA-F+H 1.73% 7T 59,855 62,355
30 May 2013 to —E-=FRA=tHE HK$1.76
29 May 2019 —T-hFRA-TANH 1.768 7T 2,300 2,300
111,555 115,855
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(ii)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at the end of the reporting period
(continued)

Each share option entitles the holder to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. Further details of these share
options are set out in Note 27 to the financial
statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Capital reserve

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, capital
reserve comprises the following:

—  the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
directors of the Company, and employees
and service providers of the Group that
has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(t)(ii);

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

29 BEX-RERKRE (8)

() BA&(&)
(i) RIFERIK A B H R

[ R AT 1 58 IR 1 2 1R 5K
(#&)
BHBRERTHEAR
BARRZ —BEBRK-
HEBREE—PHE
N ISR 5E27 -

(d) REZ2MHERRARZR

(i)

(ii)

W SIEARERBR AR

B4 BB
BN EERNEARAR
E—NAN=FRQAEF40

e
IREEE o

EX#E
RIBE-—mOER-FT—=
F+ZA=+—HB ' &R

HEBMEATEE:
- ETARAEEAR
A E 2 08 B RRTS
B 2 4 1T 20
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve (continued)

—  the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

— the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 2011
and 2012; and

—  the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

Contributed surplus

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for leasehold land
and buildings held for own use in Note 2(h).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale equity securities held at the end of
the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Notes 2(g) and 2(I)(i).
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vi) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

(vii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations which have a functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars into Hong Kong
dollars. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Note
2(x).

(e) Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of
reserves (including the Company’s retained profits,
if any, contributed surplus and share premium,
subject to equity shareholders’ approval) available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$2,568,416,000 (2013: HK$2,631,547,000).
The directors of the Company do not propose a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: HK$0.013 per ordinary and convertible
preference share) (see Note 29(b)(i)).

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

29 EX -RERKRE (&

(d) RFEZMHERRZ(F)

(e)

(vi) EERE
BEASEERH EK L
2B AR 2 HEER
WA ZEFEWB AR AR
AT A DIR 255 FE 7
HREREIERAS
MBARESWBEET
FEEREENREBER
HEBRANRELEE ZH

(vii) B % #E
[E R EEREMmA RGN
EEB BB T IREE
B EBRRBE BB
EEMERZB -HED
WRIEMT 20 FT 8k 2 & 5T X
B

o it 5K %

RZE—NWFE+=_A=+—
B A2 kFARRKREZ
HERB(BRERARAZRE
wmA (E)  BARRKREKD
B (EARERREZHE) ) A
2,568,416,0008 T (=& —=
£ :2,631,547,000/ 7T) c A A
AESTEAREE-_Z—NF
+ZA=+—HIEFERERD
BE(ZE—=F - FRETAK
N AT B 5 R%0.0138 L) (R
B EE29(b)() ) °
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

()

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes bank loans), plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash at bank and on
hand and short-term investments. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During 2014, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio to an
acceptable level. In order to improve the Group’s
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

Notes to the financial statements

(f) Capital management (continued)

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31

December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

29 EX -RERKRE (&

(f) EFXERE(F)

R-B-—OFER-_F—=F+1_

A=+—B EHESEEHE

AREEEMT
The Group The Company
AEH PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F ZE2E—0OF —_T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T&TT FE&T FHTT
Current liabilities: mENaE:
Bank loans |ITEN 1,445,081 434,982 62,675 -
Non-current liabilities: FERHEE:
Bank loans RITER 945,302 1,353,055 - -
Total debt waE 2,390,383 1,788,037 62,675 -
Add: proposed dividends 0l : #tJE A% = - 29,877 - 29,877
Less: cash at bank and on J& : SR 174517 &
hand FHERE (357,673) (266,177) (2,576) (415)
Less: short-term B AR A
investments (586,661) - - =
Adjusted net debt KARZEE 1,446,049 1,551,737 60,099 29,462
Total equity PR 5,561,934 5,073,037 2,669,563 2,934,038
Less: proposed dividends i : ## )k i% & = (29,877) = (29,877)
Adjusted capital RARER 5,561,934 5,043,160 2,669,563 2,904,161
Adjusted net debt-to- RFABFEEHER
capital ratio Lt = 26% 31% 2% 1%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

W SIEARERBR AR

ARRREEAKHER AR AZ
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from

its equity investment in another entity.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to short-term investments and trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place, and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s short-term investments are wealth
management products issued by various financial
institutions in the PRC. The principal amounts
of these products are guaranteed by the issuers.
In view of the sound credit standing of these
counterparties, the management do not expect any
of them to fail to meet their obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the debtor as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtor operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 3 months from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from debtors.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BIEREKBEERAAE (&)
VALUES (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued) () EERR (&)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced FEEAXZEERRFERE
mainly by the individual characteristics of each Tff“)\ﬁgfﬂji/ﬁzfva i 2Ef&
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors f%/\i‘«%ﬁfrﬁ TE - AUREXRE
operate and therefore significant concentrations ‘:M*EJ—L EERNEEAX

of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the
end of the reporting period, 18% (2013: 54%) and
32% (2013: 62%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest debtor and the
five largest debtors, respectively. Trade receivables
are mainly due from credit card centres owned by
state-owned financial institutions in the PRC and
tenants operating in the Group’s department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets, and accordingly,
the management of the Group considers the
concentration and credit risks to be low.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 32, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 32.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from short-
term investments and trade and other receivables
are set out in Notes 20 and 22, respectively.

WRSIEARTERBRA
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for the short-term investment of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings are
centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$1,213,845,000. The Group will
continue to undertake various measures in order to
further improve its liquidity position in the short and
longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s and of the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest dates the
Group and the Company can be required to pay.

For the long-term bank loans subject to repayment
on demand clauses which can be exercised at
the banks’ sole discretion, the analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the contractual repayment
schedule and, separately, the impact to the timing
of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with
immediate effect.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 B ERBREER AAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FBELEAKR (&)
The Group REE
2014
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—E-QF
CLESEE ki
More than ~ More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years Carrying
yearoron lessthan but less than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
Rt=H
-Frd  -FUE  WENL =

REXE BIRME BIREF ZENUL ai  <KEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

Trade and other payables & HRAG &2 BT
measured at amortised R EMEFH
cost 1,365,797 - - - 1,365,797 1,365,797
Bank loans RITEH 676,753 214,066 433,688 621,421  1,945928 1,518,636
Long-term bank loans ~ KEREEEHZ
subject to repaymenton  EHFTER
demand clauses
- scheduled repayments  —iREf &85 225,745 186,727 559,105 - 971,577 871,747

2,268,295 400,793 992,793 621,421 4,283,302 3,756,180

Adjustments to disclose ~ REEREFABEER
cash flows on long-term B2 RBRITEFHZ
bank loans hased on RefsAE
lenders’ rights to demand
repayments 646,002 (186727)  (559,105) - (99830)

2,914,297 214,066 433,688 621,421 4,183,472

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (Br3E= G -

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

& Al LAE T

Z£5)

30 BIEREERAAE(£)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) "BELEAR (&)
The Group (continued) KEE (&)
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
gz
'Hi?ﬁfifﬁim
More than ~ More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years Carrying
year or on less than  but less than ~ More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
R+=A
—ER%  —FNE  WENE =t-H
REXE BIRRE BIRRE  LFNE gx REE
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THT TAL TET TAR
Trade and other payables & R ARt 8 2 BB
measured at amortised R EMBEFH
cost 1,262,894 - - - 1,262,894 1,262,894
Bank loans RITER 286,271 356,880 752,090 697,775 2,093,016 1,481,336
Long-term bank loan BREXEBRENZ
subject to repayment on  RHHTER
demand clauses
- scheduled repayments  — &zF & 135957 190452 - - 326409 306,701
1,685,122 547,332 752,090 697,775 3,682,319 3,050,931
Adjustments to disclose ~ HEERETA
cash flows on long- BRENEERY
term bank loan based on ~ REIRTEHRZ
lender’s right to demand ~ B &7 BE
repayment 170,744 (190,452) - - (19,708)
1,855,866 356,880 752,090 697,775 3,662,611
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESF15HF & B ETZ )

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 B ERBREER AAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FBELEAKR (&)
The Company ¥ NN
2014
—E-NF
Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow Carrying
within 1 year amount
or on demand at 31 December
EHRRITE
BERH R+=A
—FRH S5
REREK ZAREE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHERT FERT
Other payables measured at REHEKATEZ
amortised cost HoAth - 50 225,262 225,262
Bank loan RITER 63,505 62,675
288,767 287,937
2013
—E—=F
Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow Carrying
within 1 year amount
or on demand at 31 December
BRRITER
wRemi R+=A
—FRK =t
R E K ZAREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Other payables measured at REHEK AT EZ
amortised cost H i E K 113,793 113,793

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BB EBREERAAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk () REEbk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REEZF =R EEZREFTE
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at B8 o ] B X RigEE =
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group BIIZBEFEAKEER D RIAZIR
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest EMEMNERRERAENER
rate risk respectively. % o
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIE#ER
The following table details the interest rate TRFAFINAEERARRTA
profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s FFEEERmERR A
borrowings at the end of the reporting period: KR -
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRRAE B A=
% HK$'000 %  HK$'000
FHET FAT
Fixed rate borrowings: BEEMREE:
Bank loans RITER 13.7% 468,658 16.5% 265,484
Variable rate borrowings: A] Z F|REE
Bank loans RITERK 6.9% 1,921,725 10.9% 1,522,553
Total borrowings fEE 4% 2,390,383 1,788,037
Fixed rate borrowings as EEFREEHEER
a percentage of total W AN
borrowings 20% 15%

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate profile (continued)

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

30 MBEBEERAAME (&)

() R=Emp (&)

(i) FIEHR (&)
The Company

b NN
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRA=R BERRAI=
% HK$'000 %  HK$'000
FHERT FABT
Variable rate borrowing: % 8 &
Bank loan RITER 2.0% 62,675 - -

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately HK$15,400,000 (2013:
HK$12,200,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2013.
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Z+—B RBHAREERE
E#ATHAI001EE 2
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B 75 1% 05 B K2 AR B8 3 F) #5
B /18 A0 #4915,400,000
BT (ZE = F:
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bl RS 3 AT TR R IR R
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through borrowings which gives rise to loans and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s
borrowings are denominated in USD and the entities
that the borrowings relate has a functional currency
in HK$. Nonetheless, the management considers
the Group is not exposed to significant currency
risk in this respect, as it is assumed the pegged
rate between HK$ and USD will remain in the

foreseeable future.

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from available-for-sale equity securities (see

Note 19).

The Group’s investments in available-for-sale
equity securities are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The performance of the available-for-sale

equity securities are regulary monitored.

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 10% in the relevant stock
price with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group's other
comprehensive income by HK$30,513,000 (2013:

not applicable).
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Equity price risk (continued)

(f)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other comprehensive inome
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair value of the Group’s equity securities would
change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock price, that none of the
Group's available-for-sale equity securities would be
considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock price, and that all other variables
remain constant.

Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

30 KREKBEERA
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=BEH -

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

LRILETZS)

30 MBEBEERAALME (&)

f) DREFE(E)
(i) BAREEZEMEE
&Efi( =)

FE-AGHEEEHAE
KTT&E@WW\%M@
AEzZRARE

The Group
AEH

Fair value measurements

as at 31 December

2014 categorlsed into

Fair value measurements

as at 31 December
2013 categor\sed into

RZE-mE RZT-=
+‘H’+ = 1 \H t—8
PEEUTERZ 9*»52%%?%&2
DNAEE RAEFE
Fair value Fair value
at 31 at 31
December December
201};{\1 Level 1 Level 2 201\2 Level 1 Level 2
—B-|mE “T-=F
+=A T=A
=8 == N N
ZARE B  FZ® ZhnE F-H FZR
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAR TET TET TET  TEn TET
Recurring fair value BEEDNABHE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale equity A e
seclurities:
- Listed (see Note 19) 7 (B i319) 358,981 358,081 - - - -
Liabilities: af:
Derivative financial FHESBTA:
instruments:
- Warrants (see Note 25)  —ziigs (£f25)  (22,164) - (2168)  (24,986) - (24,986)
The Company
KAF
Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 2
PEAE_EH2
DARAEE
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
:F%E :F/%ﬂ?
Recurring fair value measurements REMAAENE
Liabilities: AafE:
Derivative financial instruments: ’ﬁi(i\ﬁﬂl
- Warrants (see Note 25) — RS (E/fﬁufzﬂ (22,164) (24,986)
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

Notes to the financial statements

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

VALUES (continued)

()

30

Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured

at fair value (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The estimate of the fair value of the warrants
are measured based on the Monte Carlo

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

HBEMREERAAEH)

(i)

() AREFTE(HE)

BAAENBZEHEE
RefE(E)

£ MDA EFEMRER
ZAEE A K 3 A BB

RIHEE 2 A A AR
BERMRERINAE-F

Model. Details of the assumptions used are as FFTRAREZFBEAT
follows:
Warrants
RIREE
Date of valuation 31 December 31 December
fh{E B A 2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
+=A +—A
=1t =i H
Share price (HK$) BB (L) 1.46 1.66
Exercise price (HK$) 116efE (L) 1.6012 2.2874
Expected volatility (Note (i) FAHERIKE (MZE()) 45.532% 47.472%
Dividend yield (Note (i) BB (ML) 0.724% 0.674%
Maturity period JeEi 7 FA ] 1.17 years 2.17 years
1175 2175
Exercise period T A 1.17 years 2.17 years
1175 2175
Discount rate (Note (i) RER R (@) 17.059% 17.717%
Note: Bt ez
()  The discount rate used is derived from the () FIERAZBRERZ2ES
risk free interest rate with reference to BINEE S EBREE
the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes as H HA 2 & 3 b R 2= pn A
of the valuation date plus credit spread of ERUEETF B

comparable warrants with similar maturities.
The expected volatility is based on the
historical volatility, adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Dividend yield are based

on historical dividends.

Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

W SIEARERBR AR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BB EBREERAAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued) f) DREFE(E)
(ii) Fair value of financial assets and (ii) i?ﬁffﬂﬁﬁi’&@f‘z_ﬁﬂ
liabilities carried at other than fair value BEREBMBRH A E

RZEBE—WFER—_T—=
F+-_A=+—H K&

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and of

the Company’s financial instruments carried ] 15 A 2 5] 1A R A ok i
at cost or amortised cost are not materially EiﬂiﬁlJ@EZ%ﬁﬁIéZéE
different from their fair values at 31 December EEEE A A B ES A
2014 and 2013. =8
31 COMMITMENTS 31 &IE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAREE

At 31 December 2014, the outstanding capital R-Z=—mE+-—F=+—8"
commitments of the Group not provided for in the RNE B RIELRA B3R5 b B

consolidated financial statements were as follows: RN EAREENT

The Group

REME

2014 2013
—2-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT THETT

Commitments in respect of purchase B&E & FE & &E &

of fixed assets and investment BB 2 A

properties
— Contracted for —BETH 1,657,192 3,353
At 31 December 2014, capital commitments in N-ZT—mE+—A=+—8"
respect of purchase of fixed assets and investment AHESETEERIREE
properties are for leasehold improvements to BRBENREARNER B E
be installed in the Group’s department store e BB TTIE R E R E CRE
and supermarket operations and the remaining HERWEYE BTG
payments for the acquisitions of properties. g o

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

31 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

(BRIF=EIER

Bt 7% R & Y &

EAIAETZS)

31 R (&
(b) REBEHEE

At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum R-E—WNF+_-_A=+—8"
lease payments under non-cancellable operating BETAIHE EEHERERE
leases are payable as follows: B 2 EAENRERELT

The Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-mE 2 —ZT—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FH&ET
Within 1 year —FE R 105,656 107,254
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFNR 412,021 418,765
After 5 years FF% 565,065 674,387
1,082,742 1,200,406

The Group leases properties for the use by its
department store and supermarket operations, and
office premises under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 1 to 20 years,
where all terms are renegotiated upon renewal.
One of the leases includes contingent rentals which
are calculated based on a fixed percentage on the

department store’s turnover.

T4

SIEARERERA

AEBRBELEHEHREETY
EHEBEES MBRTHISES
EMRER - ZERE—RNT
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZF B - ZRILETLZE3)

31 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(c) Properties leased out under operating leases

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable as follows:

31

RIE (F
() RELEHAEHHEZME

R_ZE—NFE+-_A=+—8"
AEBRBIARE CEHEE
FEHEEK 2 HIEHERELRE
LUNE

The Group
rEE

2014 2013
—E2-F —E—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within 1 year —F R 99,992 73,237
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFNA 111,057 107,584
After 5 years FF% 67,231 85,647
278,280 266,468

The Group leases out its shopping mall and parts
of its department stores under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
12 years, where all terms are renegotiated upon
renewal. Certain of the leases include contingent
rentals which are calculated based on a fixed
percentage on the tenants’ turnover.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
has issued the following guarantees:

(i)

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest bearing bank loan drawn
by an independent third party, a business
partner of Ginwa Investments, in 2005. The
loan will mature in July 2016. In September
2010, Ginwa Investments provided a counter-
guarantee to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on
any losses incurred in connection with this
guarantee. As of 31 December 2014, the
outstanding loan balance is RMB87,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$110,280,000)
(31 December 2013: RMB87,000,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$110,659,000).

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest bearing bank loan of
RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,014,000) drawn by Ginwa Investments
in 2007. The loan will mature in September
2015. In August 2008, Ginwa Bell Tower
and Ginwa Investments have entered into an
agreement, where Ginwa Investments has
agreed to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on
any losses incurred arising from the above
guarantee. In 2014, Ginwa Investments placed
a deposit of RMB8,940,000 with Ginwa Bell
Tower as a pledge on any losses incurred
in connection with the above guarantee.
As of 31 December 2014, the outstanding
loan balance is RMB8,440,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$10,698,000) (31
December 2013: RMB9,440,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$12,007,000).

Bt 7% R & Y &

(BRIFAEEH  BRILETZS)

32 HAREE
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(ii)
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32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group

has issued the following guarantees: (continued)

(iii) A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower
in respect of a payable for acquisition of a
property by Ginwa Investments in August
2005. Ginwa Investments has defaulted
repayment of the above payable. As of 31
December 2014, the outstanding balance
of the payable is RMB9,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$12,042,000) (31
December 2013: RMB9,500,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$12,083,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors
of the Company do not consider it is probable that
a claim will be made against the Group under any
of the above guarantees. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under
the guarantees issued is the outstanding amount
of the bank loans and payable of RMB104,940,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$133,020,000) plus
accrued interest.

The Company also provides guarantees to banks
in respect of bank loans granted to subsidiaries of
the Group. The Company has not recognised any
deferred income in respect of these guarantees as
their fair value cannot be reliably measured and
their transaction prices were HK$Nil.
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 33 EXBHEATRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in BRZEMBEREREAMIOFTIRE 24
these financial statements, the Group entered into the ERIN REBITRETATERNBEA
following material related party transactions. TR 5o
(a) Transactions with equity shareholders () BEXAAFTRRREEHEAL
and their affiliates, and a director of the UR—BEEETZRS:
Company
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Interest income (see Note (i) AEBWA (ZHE)) 80,417 50,451
Rental and management and He W ARERERITBR
administrative service fee income BEIA 9,291 10,609
Operating lease expenses KERERX 1,136 58
Net increase/(decrease) in advances BEE A LT WE 2 2K
received from related parties #m,/ Cikd) F5E
(see Note (ii)) (2 HTaE i) 788 (18,946)
Guarantees provided by a director of ~ R4 HIREAE A+
the Company for the Group’s bank BAREBEZIRITER
loans at the end of the reporting ?m 2R (AR
period 26(a))
(see Note 26(a)) 253,518 -

Further details on the Group’s repayment of the
loan receivable from a related party and the
guarantees the Group provided for related parties
are set out in Notes 23 and 32(a), respectively.

Notes:

(i) Interest income represented interest charges on the
loan receivable from Ginwa Investments.

(i) The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

BERASEEEREALZER
BERARAREESREALIRM
FRERZE— B0 BIER K
23} 32(a) °

K&t
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions entered into by the Company
with subsidiaries of the Group

()

(BRIFZFEHER  BRILETZES)

33 EXBEALXRE (8)

ZR5Z

(b) AATEREEMEL R L

The Company

P NN
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net decrease in advances granted to X F M B A B 2 B X 2
subsidiaries (see Note 33(a)(ii) AR (A aE33(a)i) 32,358 3,736
Guarantees provided by the Company R¥REHRAR RG] AARE
for bank loans drawn by subsidiaries  [E & A 7 X2 R 1T
of the Group at the end of the ERIRE 2R (M
reporting period (see Notes 26(a) and  3#26(a)}%26(b))
26(b)) 1,573,492 1,540,098
Key management personnel remuneration () FEEBAEHFM

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

TREBEABZHM (BEME
BPIRBE N TARREE 2K
AR RBEE N TE T &
SEHMES 2B

2014 2013
—E-MOF —T—=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T&TT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMREMRET
in kind 24,087 15,212
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIH K 386 349
Share-based payments A& 19 1~ 3k 12,710 8,663
37,183 24,224

Total remuneration is included in

Note 6(b)).

“staff costs” (see

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

FHMEBEAATBEIRAIA

( RFf&E6(D)) °



Notes to the financial statements
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Certain of the related party transactions disclosed in
Note 33(a) above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

34 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD
Matters in connection with the acquisition of commercial

properties subsequent to the reporting period are set out
below:

(a)

(b)

Provision of a guarantee

In addition to the payments made by the Group for
its intended acquisition of commercial properties as
mentioned in Notes 18(i) and 34(b), the Company,
on 26 February 2015, also provided a guarantee
in respect of a bank loan of RMB600,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$760,553,000)
drawn by Huade Investment. The bank loan is
intended to be used in the development of the
above commercial properties and is scheduled
to mature in 2018. At the same time, the Group
has obtained counter-guarantees from (i) the
project company developing the above commercial
properties; and (ii) the intermediate holding
company of Huade Investment on the pledge of
its 70% equity interests in the immediate holding
company of Huade Investment.

Additional scheduled payment

In March 2015, the directors of the Company
consider that certain conditions as stipulated in the
agreement on the acquisition of the commercial
properties have been fulfilled, and made a
scheduled payment of RMB370,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$496,008,000) to Huade
Investment accordingly.
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34

35

36

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

The directors of the Company have confirmed that the
Group has commenced considering but is not yet in
a position to determine the potential financial impact
of the above transactions on the Group’s results of
operations in future periods and financial position at
future dates.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures set out in Notes 6(a), 6(c),
7(b), 13(a), 25, 26(b), 28(c), 32(a) and 33(b) have been
adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company at
31 December 2014 to be Maritime Century Limited
and Ginwa Investments, respectively. Neither of these
companies produces financial statements available for
public use.
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37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements.

37 BEMEYRRBRE-—S—N
F+-A=+-HLFEE
Wz ST A Z BT R
RBZEEYE

BETEZSUBEHRRAY FES
A EMZERARBE_Z
—EF+ A= HiECEa Al
el AR IR 7% 5 B 755 SR R SR AR RO T AT 2
Al BRI ZEF] kg o

Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning on

or after

RT3 B #

HZEER

ZEFHE

£

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
BEEMBRELER — T FFE_FT - _FHHZFRENE —ET-HFE+H—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
BEEMBRELER —_E——FE_FT—=—FHAHZ FRN#E —ZE-MNE+LHA—H

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
BRUBHRELE —F——FE2 T FHY FREIE

1 January 2016
—E-RF-HA—H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of

depreciation and amortisation

1 January 2016

BB ERF 165 R BB G ERIFE385 (BFTA) —T-RFE—-H—H
[BEHTE R H 2 Al M 5%

Amendments to HKAS 27, Equity method in separate financial statements 1 January 2016
ER T ERE27R (BFIRN) [EFUBFREX B ZEE] —T-RF¥—-H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

BEETERMNE IR (BIAN) [EHEKE]

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BB REERNE IS [FLE A Kz

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
B BHRELERFER [/ T A

1 January 2016
—E-RE—H—H

1 January 2017
—E—+F¥—H—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—-—H—H

HRESEAEERBERAT —ZT-HFFR
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37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2014 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that, except for HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers, for which the Group is still under the process
in assessing the impact of its application, the adoption of
the remaining standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation from the Company’s first
financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
Company’s financial year which will begin on 1 January
2015) in accordance with Section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and
will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements.
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